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23 103

2023 11 30
147.07
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2023 31
2023 31 2022 31
usb usb
2.2 5 6 $ 42,800,890 ¥ 6,294,727 $ 19,813,183 ¥ 2,913,925
2.1 344,424 50,654 152,716 22,460
15,364 2,260 39,978 5,880
2.10 3 233,306 34,312 379,198 55,769
2.4 1,026 151
43,393,984 6,381,953 20,386,101 2,998,184
2.2 5 6 1,308,857 192,494 991,448 145,812
2.4 208,979 30,735 380,223 55,919
8.1D 78,010 11,473 22,816 3,356
8.1F 52,424 7,710 34,909 5,134
2.10 3 24,222 3,562
8.1C 16,956 2,494 7,020 1,032
8.1B 7,701 1,133 4,746 698
8.1A 7,574 1,114 7,573 1,114
8.2B 4,224 621 4,276 629
8.1E 3,745 551 1,670 246
2,699 397 2,498 367
8.2D 351 52 161 24
1,715,742 252,334 1,457,340 214,331

$ 41,678,242 ¥ 6,129,619 $ 18,928,761 ¥ 2,783,853
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2023 31
2023 31 2022 31
usD usD
FVTPL @
$ 9,725 ¥ 1,430 $ 373 ¥ 55
() 2,11 7 (3,034,355) (446,263) (12,534,514) (1,843,451)
2.2 2,11 7 1,253,990 184,424 (3,365,182) (494,917)
2.6 (170,848) (25,127) 539 79
2.6 2,533 373 3,441 506
) (1,938,955) (285,162) (15,895,343) (2.,337,728)
8.1C 135,403 19,914 90,600 13,325
8.1D 112,836 16,595 88,085 12,955
8.1A 45,001 6,618 45,001 6,618
8.1F 42,115 6,194 53,251 7,832
8.18 41,962 6,171 34,726 5,107
8.2B 38,686 5,690 30,567 4,495
24,018 3,532 27,412 4,031
23,924 3,519 37,318 5,488
8.1E 18,239 2,682 12,444 1,830
8.2D 3,224 474 2,517 370
485,408 71,389 421,921 62,052
( (2,424,363) (356,551) (16,317,264) (2,399,780)
$  (2,424,363) ¥ (356,551) $  (16,317,264) ¥  (2,399,780)
@
FVTPL
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2023 31
usD
2021 31 $ 35,481,618 ¥ 5,218,282
3 6,395,565 940,596
2.8 (6,631,158) (975, 244)
(16,317,264) (2.,399,780)
2022 31 $ 18,928,761 ¥ 2,783,853
3 32,913,455 4,840,582
2.8 (7,739,611) (1,138,265)
(2,424,363) (356,551)
2023 31 $ 41,678,242 ¥ 6,129,619
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2023 31
2023 31 2022 31
UsD UsD
$  (2,424,363) ¥ (356,551) $ (16,317,264) ¥  (2,399,780)
(34,136,695) (5,020, 484) (12,113,722) (1,781,565)
12,983,530 1,909,488 25,639,115 3,770,745
(3,297,498) (484,963) (13,070, 268) (1,922,244)
3,034,355 446,263 12,534,514 1,843,451
(1,253,990) (184,424) 3,365,182 494,917
1,026 151 149,974 22,057
24,614 3,620 27,413 4,032
(171,244) (25,185) (3,096,304) (455,373)
! 88,015 12,944 7,837 1,153
(25,152, 250) (3.699,141) (2.,873,523) (422,609)
33,059,347 4,862,038 9,506,336 1,398,097
(7,715,389) (1,134,702) (6,644,627) (977,225)
25,343,958 3,727,336 2,861,709 420,872
191,708 28,194 (11,814) @,737)
2.1 152,716 22,460 164,530 24,197
2.1 $ 344,424 ¥ 50,654 $ 152,716 ¥ 22,460
$ 9,725 ¥ 1,430 $ 373 ¥ 55
(€))
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2023 31
1.

2013 12

2019
2019 29
2021 2014 22
2021
KY1-9005
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands
2021 12 CSC
CsC 2022 11 Intertrust Group
SMBC

usD $
TRY
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2023 31
2023 31 2022 31
7.9 4.7
2163 12
32

UBS Group AG 2023 19

FINMA Credit Suisse Group AG
2023 12 UBS Group AG Credit Suisse Group AG

Credit Suisse International
2023 11 30
2.
IFRS IFRS
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27 2012
IFRS
FVTPL FVOCI IFRS 9
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2023 31

FVTPL
FVTPL

SPP1

SPP1

FVTPL

SPP1

SPP1
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2023 31

ECL FVOCI

ECL

FVTPL
12
ECL
2023 31

2022

2.1

2023 31 2022 31

2023 2022
$ 16,809 $ 142
327,615 152,574
$ 344,424 $ 152,716

2.2

Q)]

FVTPL
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2023 31
2023 31 2023 31
$ 42,791,195 $ 41,500,919
9,695
$ 42,800,890 $ 41,500,919
2022 31 2022 31
$ 19,809,844 $ 20,084,611
3,339
$ 19,813,183 $ 20,084,611
FVTPL
2023 31
$ 1,308,857
2022 31
$ 991,448
®
©
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2023 31

O]

NAV

NAV

10

2.3

2023
31 2022 31

2.4
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2023 31

2.5

2.6

Q)]

®

2.7

2023 31 2022 31

2.8
1AS
32

2023 31 2022 31
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2023 31

2.9

2.11 FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL FVTPL

FVTPL

2063 12

1 2023 31 2022 31

IAS 12
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2023 31
2023 31 2022 31
2.13
3.
10
2023 31
$ 41,678,242 49,007,442 $ 0.8504
TRY 1,122,259,603 49,007,442 TRY 22.8998
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2023 31

2022 31
$ 18,928,761 22,359,417 $ 0.8466
TRY 339,136,815 22,359,417 TRY 15.1675

2023 31 3 2022 31 2
100

4.

5.

5.1
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2023 31
»
IMF
2023 31

2023 31

TRY 15,497 $ $ (1,299,162) $ 233,306 $  (1,050,359) (2.5)

USD 328,927 42,791,195 (391,521) 42,728,601 102.5

$ 344,424 § 42,791,195 $ (1,299,162) $ (158,215) $ 41,678,242 100.0
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2023 31
2022 31
2022 31
TRY $ $ $  (988,109) $ 379,198 $ (608,911) 3.2)
usD 152,716 19,809,844 (424,888) 19,537,672 103.2
$ 152,716 $ 19,809,844 $  (988,109) $ (45,690) $ 18,928,761 100.0
*
2023 31 2022 31
2023
TRY +/- 50.44 -/+ $ 537,617
2022
TRY +/- 111.72 -/+ $ 680,275
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2023 31
2023 31 2022 31 50
1
1,638 763
2023 31 2022 31 1
427,912 198,098
2023 31

$ 6,591,808
3,669,409
50,716,547
4,010,102
10,117,646
5,778,889
25,293,977
2,074,695
27,645,325
2,207,629
2,844,512
12,129,671
686,171
1,000,050
8,123,733
2,968,545
1,008,524
6,154,717
402,956
32,977,353
246,321,911
$ 452,724,170

0O O P O Ok O ODMNOOOUIOMPE P O O O P

Al P P P DNOOOODNEFEPNOORAPRPDRSNPRPR ONW-NNDN

IS
o

[oe]
w
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2023 31

2022 31

$ 6,414,752
803,672
1,999,345
500,221
45,812,479
6,848,413
5,282,584
8,510,446
6,410,753
2,351,586
23,787,977
409,848
22,672,023
533,469
4,923,619
9,976,239
193,980
1,198,217
6,755,277
774,619
9,245,552
200,225
38,559,345
189,682,053
$ 393,846,694

o O O -

=
o

OIN N P DN WO BMNEREPE AP NOOO OO WO © KK, 0N O

© O N O P OO NPFPF O Ul O Ul Ok NP P

IS
o

[{e]
w

®

2023 31 2022 31

101/243



2023 31

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 31

Aaa
Aal
Aa2
Aa3
Al
A2
A3
Baal
Baa2
Baa3
Bal
B1
B2

Caa2
NR

I
N

P O OO OO OOaONNDNRF P

*%

*%

©
w

A0 O OFP WWOO WO O U U1l WE K-

2022 31

Aaa
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Aa2
Aa3
Al
A2
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Baal
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Ba2
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NR
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2023 31
©
2023 31
208,979 % $ 208,979
78,010 78,010
52,424 52,424
24,222 24,222
16,956 16,956
7,701 7,701
7,574 7,574
4,224 4,224
3,745 3,745
2,699 2,699
351 351
406,885  $ $ 406,885
2022 31
380,223 % $ 380,223
34,909 34,909
22,816 22,816
7,573 7,573
7,020 7,020
4,746 4,746
4,276 4,276
2,498 2,498
1,670 1,670
161 161
465,892  $ $ 465,892

15
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2023 31
2023 31 2022 31
2023 31
$ 44,662,446  $ $ $ 44,662,446
43,363,284 43,363,284
2022 31
$ 19,802,919 $ $ 19,802,919
18,814,810 18,814,810
2023 31 2022 31
®
5.2
®
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2023 31

®

©

O]
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2023 31
2023 31
cs 9,695 % 9,695
9,695 $ 9,695
cs 9,695 § 9,695) $
9,695 § (9,695) $
cs (1,308,857) $ (1,308,857)
(1,308,857) $ (1,308,857)
cs (1,308,857)  $ 9,695 $  (1,299,162)
(1,308,857)  $ 9,695 $  (1,299,162)
CS
2022 31
cs 3,339 $ 3,339
3,339 $ 3,339
cs 3,339 $ (3,339) $
3,339 $ (3,339) $
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2023 31
cs $ (991,448)  $ $ (991,448)
$ (991,448)  $ $ (991,448)
cs $ (991,448) 3,330 § $ (988,109
$ (991,448) 3,33 $ $ (988,109
CS
®
2023 31
2022 31
®
O]
2163 12
5.3

IFRS 13
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2023 31

3
2023 31
2023 31

$ $ 42,791,195 $ $ 42,791,195

9,695 9,695
$ $ 42,800,890 $ $ 42,800,890
$ $ (1,308,857)  $ $ (1,308,857)
$ $ (1,308,857) $ (1,308,857)
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2023 31
2022 31
2022 31
$ $ 19,809,844 $ $ 19,809,844
3,339 3,339

$ $ 19,813,183 $ $ 19,813,183

$ $ (991,448) $ $ (991,448)

$ $ (991,448)  $ $ (991,448)
2023 31 2022 31

2023 31 2022 31
5.4
2023 31 2022 31 543,055,262
419,610,419 2023 31 523,850,606
452,724,170
86,873,229 797,477
(15,153,041) (1,171,355) 2022 31
317,591,618 393,846,694
16,493,076 (93,942,677) 2,562,647
(1,367,172) (950)
2023 31

2022 31
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2023 31
6.
100
1
100

2023 31 G.1)
2023 10 cs TRY  1,118,055,364  USD (42,648,882) $ (1,291,777)
2023 10 cs TRY 1,010,739 USD (37,582) (194)
2023 10 cs TRY 153,441  USD (5,794) (118)
2023 10 cs TRY 1,527,099  USD (57,930) (1,444)
2023 10 cs TRY 16,168,910  USD (610, 665) (12,573)
2023 10 cs TRY 2,933,293  USD (110,643) (2,140)
2023 10 cs TRY 818,643  USD (30,893) (611)
2023 10 cs TRY 382,742 USD (14,043) 114
2023 10 cs TRY 457,281 USD (16,750) 165
2023 10 cs TRY 687,864  USD (25,198) 246
2023 10 cs TRY 604,850  USD (22,217) 157
2023 10 cs TRY 1,410,040  USD (52,156) 1
2023 10 cs TRY 4,952,482  USD (182,394) 799
2023 10 cs TRY 1,675,921 USD (61,789) 204
2023 10 cs TRY 2,562,394  USD (94,615) 168
2023 10 cs UsD 670,635  TRY (17,927,497) 7,493
2023 10 cs UsD 20,890  TRY (558,876) 217
2023 10 cs UsD 7,210  TRY (191,395) 131

$ (1,299,162)
cs
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2023 31
2022 31 G.2)
2022 10 cs TRY 3,372,089 USD (185,256) $ 1,358
2022 10 cs TRY 309,085  USD (17,233) (128)
2022 10 cs TRY 1,657,419  USD (93,015) (1,292)
2022 10 cs TRY 1,186,031  USD (67,419) (1,782)
2022 10 cs TRY 325,551,014  USD (19,003,904) (987,612)
2022 10 cs TRY 1,496,850  USD (83,471) (634)
2022 10 cs TRY 3,563,471 USD (196,425) 780
2022 10 cs USD 84,642  TRY (1,519,779) 536
2022 10 cs USD 26,346 TRY (472,436) 201
2022 10 cs USD 8,027  TRY (143,079) 108
2022 10 cs USD 34,664  TRY (623,088) 182
2022 10 cs USD 3,718 TRY (64,051) 174
$ (988,109)
cs
7.
2023 31 2022 31
$ 263,143  $ 535,754
(3,297,498) (13,070, 268)
$ (3,034,355)  $ (12,534,514)
$ 1,565,043  $ (850,956)
() (311,053) (2,514,226)
$ 1,253,990  $ (3,365,182)
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8.1

Q)

0.04
2022 31
2022 31

®
0.025
31

©
0.60

2023 31
2023 31

2022 31
2022 31

©
0.35

2023 31
2023 31

2022 31
2022 31

0.01
2023 31
2023 31

2023 31

2023 31 2022

8.2

®
10,000
2022 31
2022 31

3,750

2023
2023

2022

31
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31 2022
31 2022 31

10
2022 31
31
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2023 31
®
0.12
2023 31 2022 31
2023 31 2022 31
32
Actual/365
©
5,000
2023 31 2022 31
2023 31 2022 31
()]
0.01
2023 31 2022 31
2023 31 2022 31
®
2023 31 2022 31
3,297,498 13,070,268
311,053 2,514,226 7
9.
10
2023 31 2022 31
10.
2023 11 30 2023
2023 11 30 6,676,424 3,391,151
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31

566,655
0

33
2,035
6,018

81,025
0
0

5,656
3,244

664,672

83,338

299

885

11,916

832
477

2,630

194

4,661
115,490
0

4
640
2,486
161

0

0

36
134
105

97,753

126,541

387
29
685

16,985

94
366
24

20
15

538,131

18,610
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576,136 84,732

0 0

5 1

0 0

0 0

44,506 6,545
414

107.43 15,800
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2023 31

17,840 2,624

1 0

17,841 2,624
166 24

108 16

101 15
1,315 193

43 6
210 31

99 15

174 26
1,670 246

37 5

25 4

296 44

178 26
4,422 650
13,419 1,974
(11,270) (1,657)
0 0

2,348 345
(6,218) (914)
700 103
(14,440) (2,124)
7,281 1,071

0 0
187 (28)
(2,643) (389)
(13) @
4,438 653
(10,002) (1,471)
3,417 503

2022 30 2023 28

117/243



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 31

13,419 1,974
(14,440) (2,124)
4,438 653
3,417 503

0 0

0 0
81,395 11,971
84,812 12,473
453,319 66,670
538,131 79,143

12
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2023 31

103.66 15,245
() 4.02 591
(0.25) @37
3.77 554
107.43 15,800
©) 3.64
44,506 6,545
0.01
0.00
3.83

0.01
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2023 31

WEEE e
(s iz

JEUZ 7 AFrA AT
Irelasd Capital DAC

1. 150% due 10,739,/ 2023 i 3. 000 i 202
1. 650% duc 1025 2 1] 470
3. 150% due 02715,/ 2024 o200 X167
Aircastle Ltd
4. 400% due 09,715/ 2023 0 A9
hozore Bank Ltd
1 050% due 09,05, 2024 4. 1040 3. 852
B 00N due 002/ 2026 1, 500 1. 518
Arvusduoen 5 A
4. 500% due DG 142025 Al 20) 122
Atheme Global Punding
00500 due 008,/ 2024 3 300 s
L. 000K due 0,16,/ 2024 200 150
1. 200% due 101372023 1, 004 =0
SN o 0083024 Lit] 579
5. 702K due 05,/24/2024 3. 500 3787
hvelon Holdiegs Funding Ltd
LoBTS% due 0271552025 Li1i] 560
5o 125% due 10/00/2023 1] Ri=
Banco Bilbao Vizcays Argentaris S.A
0. 875% due 09/18/ 2023 1. 60K 1. 575
Banco Santander 5, A
3. 80E% due 050242024 1. 700 1. 863
Bank of Aserica Corp.
075 due /2202025 2. T00 2. bed
35048 due 0723/ 2024 500 e
5. TU2% due 10/ 24 00 7o
G 233% due- 072573024 (] 1011
6. 333K due B4/02/ 2026 1. 604 1. 613
Barclays PLC
L00T% dus 12700/ 3024 1, 204 L. 163
3. 032% due 0607/ 2025 4, 000 3,915
BGC Partners, Inc,
B.3TE% due 07/ 24/ 2023 1, 100 1. oa7
B Paribas 5. A
BATE% due 010902025 1. 682 1. 623
3. 800% due O/ 10/ 2024 1. 300 1,284
I TS% duc 00RO/ 3025 3. 600 3, BT
BOC Aviationm Led
6. 2560 due 0626,/ 2023 1, 0041 1, K0
BFCE 5. A
4. 000% due DdSES/ 3024 500 3
Cantor Fitzgerald LP
1 BTS% due 05,00,/ 2024 2. T 2730
Citigroup, Imc.
BoaTe due 10/27/2023 Al 2,400 1. 851
b 985% due 06,01,/ 2024 L 300 L
Crodit Agricole S A
B % due 002203024 1, ) 1, 407
Crodit Suisse AG
B L6TS due 11/20/2023 (&) ALl 3 000 , 936
b, 465% due 0202/ 2024 5 500 490
Crodit Suisse Group AG
2. 193% due 06,05, 2026 1, 004 W
B 3048 due 06122024 1. 500 1. 479
Dansioe Bank ASS
L 206N due 06223034 1, 00 a7
5. 375% due 0171272024 1.7 1. 687
B 214% due 09/ 1202023 3300 3321
Deutsche Bank AG
0. 808% due 05/08/2024 (o) 1, 0041 fr
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O 962% dug 11082005 5 3,700 5 3. 568
3. T00% due 08/30/ 3024 1,200 1. 167
8 Bank ASA
008 due 00/ 383025 100 623
First Abu Dhabi Bank FJSC
5 (N9% due 02718/2025 AT L] H=n
F5 EER Capital Corp.
L. G50% due 10/ 12/ 2024 3 400 0
GA Global Pueding Trust
0. 800% due 06/13,/2024 500 467
L 000 due 4,06,/ 2024 20 =4
1. 250% due 127082023 o] ki
1. GIE% due 0L/15/2026 400 hE
B 30E% due 0913/2024 00 189
BGu 382% due 04,/ 10/2025 1, 200 1174
Goldeen Sachs Group, Inc.
1. 757% due 0024 2025 1304 1. 063
5 6TT% due |2/08/ 2006 L] B
7. 063% due §1/09,/2023 1. 0040 1. 03
Hana Bank
B % due 001372024 500 500
HSBC Holdings FLC
G 384% due 00/10/2026 4,000 4, 007
NG Groep KY
4. 100K due 10/02/ 2023 1. 1041 1, e
5. 0% due 000/ 202T « =00 1. 187
B 177% dus 1050270025 100 701
G B22% due 0028/ 2026 2. 400 2419
Jackson Naticeal Life Global Funding
G 132N due 06383024 2,300 2 3m
JPorgan Chase & Co.
3 T due 07/ ER 2024 200 16
400N due 12/05/2024 200 195
G L63% due 0755 2024 1. 200 1, 401
B B2 dug (M35, 2026 1. 300 1. 312
LoasePlan Corp. MY
2. BTE% due 10/24,/2024 Lt ] 5id
Mitmshishi BC Capital, Inc.
i B0 due 09,159/ 2020 fre] TES
Mitmghishi UF] Financial Group, Inc.
0. 845% due 09715/ 2024 3,700 3843
4. 9% due 107002024 AT 450 )
Bo031% due 0232026 kot 1, G 1, Bah
6. B85 due 07/18/2025 ] 1. i
Mizubo Financial Group, Ine.
0849 due 0008 2004 1.200 1. 153
Lo 241% due 0710/ 2024 1. 000 5
BN doe 059/ 10/2024 2200 2185
5. 0T9% due 07/19/3023 ALD 1,000 BAT
B 200% due 07/ 10,/2024 5 500 500
Morgan Stanley
O T due 0630/ 3025 5,000 4, 740
G165 doe 04/17/ 2025 1. 0040 1, 003
Nat{eewide Building Society
(. 5500 due 01/Z2/3024 00 =7
4. 363% due 05°001/2024 . 400 2 39]
NatWest Group FLC
4. 265% due 03722/ M205 1, 00 el
GG due 0625/ 2024 1. 204 1, 800
NatWest Markets FLC
6. 405% due 00/T2/3025 g ] 501
Nomure Holdiegs, Ine.
1. 850% due 0716/ 2025 1. 300 1. 195
SN due 0116,/ 2026 1,200 1, 138
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Nordes Bank Abp
5819 due 06/06,/2025 3 4. 000 1 3,959
G 40c due 08,30,/ 2020 1,300 1. 301
Park Aerospace Holdiegs Ltd
b B0O% due 0015/ 2024 ) o]
Piper Sandler Cos.
5 200K due 101573023 B Bel
@ Finance Lrd
1. 125% dus DESET/ 3024 4. 000 & 821
6. 245% due 00/20/2024 S04 RO5
Santander UK Group Boldings FLC
1.089% due 0G/15,/2025 1,760 L. 70
4. TGN due D115/ 2024 2. 200 2, 153
SBA Tewsr Trast
3. 805% due 10,08,/ 2024 1, 000 w7l
Scciete Generale 5. A
2. 605% due D1/22/2005 1, 604 1, 55
JBTEN due 00,7255 2024 500 450
4. 2500 due 09142023 1. 304 1, 259
B 09E% due 01/21/ 2026 2100 2083
Standard Chartered FLC
3. TES% due 0G/21/2025 200 195
G022% due 11/23/2025 1. 600 1, hsd
6. T due 05,30/ 2026 1. S04 1. 415
Sumitomo Mitsul Finamcial Group, Inc.
G 1% due 00 1R/ D026 ] 3, 73
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Ltd
0. 300% due 0916,/ 2024 500 470
0 850% due G/ 25,2024 1, 004 13
Smechrony Fimancial
4. 250% due 08,15,/ 2024 1420 1, HE
4. 375% due 03192024 A0 =8
UBS Group AG
G 6T1% due 0512/ 2026 3. 600 3, God
Yenovie Finarce BY
5. 000 due 10702/ 2023 500 qG7
Wolls Fargo & Co,
L. 654% due 06022024 600 600
BoATHe due M35/ 2026 3. 000 &, 023
Wostpas: Banking Corp.
4. 862% due 11/16/2023 ALD 5, 000 P |

158, 876

=€ 0%
T-Eleven, Inec.
0. 500% due 0210,/ 2024 5 1, B3 1,528
Barry Callebaut Services WY
b 50O% due 06/ 15,2023 1,800 1. 758
Baxier Intermational, Inc.
b. 352% due 12701/2023 1. 000 L=
Bayer U.5. Finance II LLC
B 8TE% due 12715,/ 2023 1. &00 1, 781
5. 9TE% due 120152003 3. 500 3, 458
Berry Global, Inc.
4. 875% due 0715/ 2026 1.-150 L1
Bowieg Co.
L A% due O304/ 2024 1. 500 I, 748
1. 9500 due 02013024 7 B84
Broadoom Corp.
3 625% due DI/ 152024 B0 453
M Industrisl Capital LLC
1. 050% due 07,02/ 2023 1, 500 L, 4596
4. 200% due 0015/ 2024 3. 004 2.4M
Daimler Truck Finance Borth Aserica LLC
B, 99 due (4052024 1. 009 1. 00K
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Energy Transfer LP
3000 due 06152024 i 2,000 3 1,954
4. 250% due B4/00/2024 1. 108 1. 4
4. 500% due 4/ 15,3024 1, 004 )
Ford Motor Credit Co. LLC
3370% due 11517/ 2023 400 195
General Motors Financiasl Co., Ine.
1. 700 due 08, 18,/ 2023 B0 e
5100 due 01172024 2.850 2,800
G 290% due 111772023 504 501
Haleon U, 5. Capital LLC
3 2R due 03242024 00 =6
HCA, Ine.
B, 000% due 06/ 15,3024 6,043 B, i
Hyundai Capital America
L BTE% due 06 L2024 LR T |
Isperial Brasde Finamee PLC
FoEEEN due 07363024 2381 2 -0
3. 500% due 07,26,/ 2026 40 375
4. 250% due 07/21/2025 300 )
JUE Peat’s KY
0. B00% due’ 0924,/ 2024 2,100 1, 558
Hissan Motor Acceptamcs Co. LLC
1. 125% due 09/16,/2024 200 186
3BTEN due 06,21/3023 500 496
Hissan Moter Co, Ltd
3 043% due D815, 2003 4. 900 1, 831
NP BV
4 875% due 03,00/ 3024 1. 000 =
Ronesas Blectronics Corp.
15438 due 1153672024 T 654
5K Bmix, Ine.
L 000% die 00,/ 18,2024 1, G0 1. 841
O 000 due 05 1T/ 2024 00 B33
SMBC Avinticn Capital Finanes DAC
33500 due DM/ 152024 1. 650 I, 815
4. 125% due 0715/ 2023 104 e
TD STRNEX Corp.
1. 2500% due DE/09/ 2024 1, 504 L. 415
Transurban Queensland Finance Pry Ltd
3 750K due 1071253003 AT TG 82
Yolkswagon Group of America Finance LLC
3 0500 due 06DE/2025 L oTH 2847

Warnermedin Boldings, Ine.

3 TESR due 03152025 500 43

Westinghouse Air Brake Techaologies Corp.

4. A% due 0315,/ 2024 300 i
57, 306

Jusgrid Finarce Pty Ltd

3. 7500 due 10,730,/2024 ALD L] i
A 80EE due 103003024 L] 13
4. 072% due 0206,/ 2024 5040 24
British Teleccmmunications PLC

4. 500% due 12042023 S 60 547
Charter Commmications Operating LIC

G, 849 due 02012024 5, 800 B, 821
Chugoly Blectric Power Co., Ino,

3. 401% dus 08/237/2024 400 =
Ensl Finance International KV

. G50% due 091072024 4,40 4, 61
G SUCH due 1014/ 2025 1,200 230
Eni SpA

A 0000 due 09 12/2023 4. 200 A 174
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Igrasl Electrie Corp. Ltd
5. 000% due 10/12/2024 5 1,000 1 e
6. 375% due D6/Z1/2023 1,500 1, 500
Jersey Central Power & Light Co.
4, TOO% due 04701/ 2024 2154 213
Korea Southern Power Co. Lid
4. GASK due 10,730,730 ALD 3000 1937
WoxtEra Energr Capital loldirgs, Inc.
1. 255% due 09002024 b1 1, 500 1,477
B, B0% due 0G/20/ 2024 3, 200 3, 201
B, 051% due 0G/00/2025 L] 410
Pocific Gas & Electric Lo,
1. T00% due 11715/ 2003 1. 6100 1; 551
3. 2508 due 06/15/2023 100 100
o ANDS due 0816/ 2024 T B0
3. T50% due 0215/ 2024 100 o3
3.850% due 11/15/2003 104 o
4, 250% due 08/00/2023 300 )
SG5P lustralis Assets Pry Ltd
& Ta0% due D6/18,/2023 ALD S00 b
Shell Interpational Finance EV
5 T21% due L1SERSI0ZE ] BT iry
Soutkern Californin Edison Co.
B, 824% due (4002024 1,000 LT
Sprint LLC
7. 12EN due 06/15,/2024 100 10
Verizon Commenications, Inec.
6. 421% due 06/15/2025 1,641 1. 057

a5, 286

HE R 253, 466
(BRI $256, T00)
Dauphin, Penmsylvanis, Pennsylvania Higher Edocstion Assistance Agency Revenue Bonds, Series 2006
5. 385% due 10/55/2036 142 143
Rt 143
(BB $141)0
IS 12, 00
Fannie Man
5. 938% due 03/25/2038 Bl 61
Fodersl Home Losn Back
5. 5000 due 0608/ 2025 £, 000 7. 083
B G504 due 06/28/2035 (b) 5,304 B
B, T1O% due 0314/ 2025 5, 500 g, 496
Froddie Mac
o 500 due 10/35/ 2048 138 124
3. 000% dus 09552045 270 23
4. 061% due 01/15,/2040 o5 Frr)
4. 095% due 005152037 444 437
5. 500N due (8555035 5,500 5T
5.850% due 06./09/2025 6. 000 5, 489
5. 650% due 0C/07/2025 5. 504 5 5a7
5. GEON due (4,00 2005 5,800 5, 798
5. T30 due (49032025 5,500 B 7e7
B, SI0% due 0G0/ 2025 5, 600 B, 5a7
5. 950% due 03/20/2025 (0 8. 200 B 2H
Ginnie Mam
25000 due (00720, 2049 52 47
25000 due 10,720,204 i} =
4. 645% due |1/20/ 2067 5493 Az
4. B85 due 07202086 43 =
5. 335% due 00./20,/2061 i) ar
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5 5 3

|08 105

1. 10 1,08
B4, 703

610 Asset-Hacked Trust
2o due 06,25,/ 2061

MCE Securities Corporstion Bome Equity Loan Trust
S OEER due 252034

Atrium Hotel Portfolio Trust

e 057% due 06 15/2035

Aven Finance Mo, 2 FLC

S 10E%. due 06,50,/ 3048

RAML Commorcinl Mortgege Securities Trust
B 15T due B/15/ 2036

G 30T% due 037 152004

Bear Stearns A&djustable Rate Mortgage Trust
F605N due 08,/25/2033

1. 513% due 0425,/ 2033

Bear Stearns Assot-Backed Securities I Trust
HoA6S% due 0925/ 3004

Beast Mortgage Trust

6. 167% due 03715/ 2006

Benchmark Mortgage Trust

2.256% due 0315,/ 2054

F.042% due 0815/ 2062

Brass Ko, B PLC

B O15% due 11716/ 2066

BEAY Wortgage Trust

B.357% due 09,715/ 2035

BX Trust

B 8730 due 0115,/ 2004

CLNT Trust

0. 302% due 111572038

Crodit Suisse Mortgage Capital Trust
1. T96% due 12/27,/3060

2ORES% due 0325,/ 2059

3008 due 4,25/ 2062

b, 000 due 0725,/ 2066

b 857% due 07,15,/ 2032

CSAIL Commarcial Mortgage Trust

d 2% due 0615/ 2052

Dilesk RMES o, 4 DAC

4. 133% due 0220,/ 2060

Buropean Loam Conduit Bo, 36 DAC

4. 355% due 02/17,/2030

Extendod Stay Amorica Trust

B. 165% due 0715/ 3008

Finerco ksorica Mortgage Loan Trust
0 963% due 08,35/ 3034

Fresont Home Loan Trust

O 8TE% due 0)S25/206

GCAT Trust

L 081% due D6/25/ 2066

2. BEEN due 1272772008

GCT Comsarcial Mortgage Trust
BT due 02/15/3038

G5 Mortgnge-Backed Secarities Trust
B 000% dus 12725,/ 206]

5. 000% due 02725,/ 2052

HPLY Trust

B 107% due 11715/ 2036

GEF

Hi
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Impas CME Trnast
oo 385 due 00/ 25/2035 £ BTl i B2
b, TTE% due 03/35/2035 1] T3
INTOWN Mortgage Trust
7. 8% due 08/ 15/2039 ] B2
JPorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
G 3NTS due 061572035 455 450
B B57% due 12/15/2031 Lx 113
JPiorgan Mortgage Trust
3. 500% due 06/25,/2050 ] 56
B 000 due 06235,/ 3052 331 J0G
Kinbase DAC
0% due 059,25,/ 3062 (HE Lire] 63T
Logney Mortgege Asset Trust
L. 876% due 1025/ 2068 5 306 bl
& 250% due 07252067 & T
Leng Basch Mortpnge Losn Trisst
B 113% due 04,/25/2035 370 a6y
MASTR Asset-Backed Securities Trust
5. 838K due 09257203 105 =
NFA Trust
Lo 130% due 0735,/ 2060 1, 366 1,218
1. 479% due 03252065 2 by
Mill City Mortgage Lean Trust
I 125% due |25/ 3060 L) 42
2. THO due 0815/ 2064 405 HL)
Morgan Stanley Asset-Backed Securities Capital I, Inc. Trust
6. 038N due 06/25,/3034 firl 268
Morgan Stanley Capital T Trust
B. 10T% due 06/ 15/2035 T00 657
Morgan Stanley Residentinl Mortgage Losn Trust
B, 0% due 0925,/ 2061 M2 316
Wew Residential Mortgage Loan Trust
0% due 10/25/ 2058 pioL ] 2u
3. 500% due 12725/ 1067 56 53
4. 500 due 05725/ 2058 104 105
NevaStar Mortgage Fumding Trest
5 70N due 01252036 129 127
NYMT Losn Trast
1. GTO0% due 0625,/ 2061 L) i)
N0 Commarcial Morigage Trust
G 2655 due 110152038 1, S0 1, 734
Pelaris FLC
5678 due 05/27/3057 GE 516 640
Procise Mortgage Fundimg PLC
5,304 due 10/16/2056 LR 532
Protiom Mortgege Credit Partesrs I LLC
2. 240% due 09/27/ i 107 iz}
Pratimm Mortgage Credit Parimers LLC
1 592% due 0215/ 2061 BT 764
Rosidential Mortgage Accopiance Corporation PLC
B (MO due 06/12/2048 GEP 250 e
Residentinl Mortgnge Securities 32 FLC
B 512% due 06/30,/2070 a1 a6
RESTMAC Prowmier
5. 804% due 077 10/2052 5 L 2477
Stratton Mortgage Funding
B L6T% due 0720,/ 3060 GEP s} E[u]
Stratton Mortgage Fueding FLC
b (E3% due 03/12/2062 405 a0l
Structured Asset Investment Loen Trust
B, GEE% due 092573034 3 1. 5 1486
Tourss UK DAC
oo 209% due 06,17/ 2031 G 1. G838 Z 016
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Tharsldeon Botel Portfolie Trust
B. 145% due 10/10/20034 3 210 3 T
Tewd Foint Mertgage Panding
5. THE% due OF/30/2045 GEP 523 1017
6. 229% dug 02700,/ 2064 37 418
Towd Point Mortgage Fanding Adburn 14 FLC
5 TT9% due 05,50/ 3045 T g7
Towd Point Mortgage Fanding Granited PLC
SoAEI% dus 10030/ 305] 14 130
Towd Point Mertgage Trust
G o due 06,725/ 2058 3 bt 480
B 135% due 06/25/2058 323 =
G 138% due 10725/ 3054 25 4 H
Tewsr Hridge Funding FLC
5. T67% due 10302064 GE 1. 500 1,871
Tudor Rose Mortgnges
1. B05% due 06/30/ 2048 56 =]
Twin Bridges FLC
5, 0% due 067 12/2050 267 3]
Yerus Securitizetion Trust
B BHI% due 06/25/2027 ] 300 Ee
¥olls Pargo Cossorcial Norigage Trust
4. 218% due 07/16/2048 129 128
P B B« o & R 45, 46
(R 552, B42)
G 152% due 10/ 18/ 3028 1. 965 1543
B (L0 16 Led
G Z31% due D4/ B/ 2029 11 111
Anchorage Capital CLO 6 Ltd
G 310% due 0715/ 2030 2T 2, T2
Apldos CLOD XIT
G 0% due 04/ 15/ 2031 1. 500 1. 484
AREIT Trust
G 18E% due 10/17/2038 1.3 1.5
G 1001% due 0614/ 2038 21 =1
ARES L CLO Ltd
G 310% due 0015/ 2032 300 95
Bariegs CLD Ltd
G 470% due 00/30,/ 3032 1. 000 e
Bireh Grove 1O Ltd
B % due 671575031 1, &0 L AT
B Cannda Asto Trust
B A00% due 005002006 (b CAD &, 100 1. a3k
BN Vehicle Le&se Trast
52700 due 0225/ 2025 § 1, 004 i
Bumper Do 5 A
T due 08/T3/ 2032 EiR 2,000 2135
Cairm CLO IV DAC
3 BZ% due 0430030310 L8971 2. s]
Capital One Malti-Asset Execution Trust
5. 68T due 0F/15/2027 3 1. 000 1, 002
Carmax huto Owner Trust
57224 due 06,15/ 2026 2. 0 =l
B TT2% due 12/16/2025 Lo I, 251
Carvana huto Receivables Trust
4. 420% due §27 1072025 Ba6 652
O Recoivables Trust
5. 395% due 03/ 14,2024 T4 TOH
Chesapenks Funding 11 LLC
B. 122% due 06/15,/20095 2507 2,800
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Citibenk Cradit Card I&fuincsd Trist
oo 435% due 0609/ 2025 £ LT 5 =, )
b, TOE% due 04./22/2026 (] 1. 02
Commercinl Industrial Finance Corporation Funding Ltd
. 2I5% due 10734/ 2030 2. 380 356
Contepo CLO IV DAC
Jo851% due O)CZE3030 ELR ] 116
Daimler Trucks Retail Trust
BOTO% due 09716,/ 202 £ 1, 70T 1, 700
Dwll Equipment Finance Trust
0 530% due 2022/ 2006 2. 000 1,952
BOMC Group Student Leosn Trust
o BEE% due 0227/ 2068 03 Ja2
6. 185% due 0615/ 2067 TH9 Ta7
EFE Waolunteer LLC
6. 106% due 10/35/30356 =} =
Elevation CLO Lid.
G A7E% due (0152029 LI g
ELFI Graduate Loan Progras LLC
1. 500% due 12/36/2046 1. G0 1. B35
Enterprise Fleet Financing LLC
4. 380% due 0730/ 2029 1. 000 ]
5. TBO% due 102272029 1. 500 1. 502
Ford Muto Securitization Trust 11 Asset-Backed Motes
4. 9664 due 10/ 16/ 2024 Can S 50
Ford Credit Auto Lease Trust
b BIZ% due 06/15/2026 ] 1,000 1. (0d
Ford Credit Auto Jwner Trust
b 392% due D4/ 15/ 2026 ] fiE
b G32% due 08/15,/2025 s )
Gallatin CLO IX Ltd
G 310% due 01212028 287 pie i}
Gl Finencinl Autoschile Lensing Trust
5. 481% due 06/30/2025 2,000 2,000
5G4 1% due 10215202 1, 34 1. 330
G Finencinl Consumer Autcmchile Recsivables Trust
5.5301% duwe 11/07/3025 2. 154 2, 157
Geol denitroe Lean Managesoent (LS. CLOD 2 Lud
B L0 doe 1130/ 2030 200 198
GPMT Led
G A0E% due 12715/2036 1. B I. 787
Harley-Davidson Motoreycls Trest
B B0 due 06 15,2026 5, 780 B, 753
HERA Commercial Mortgege Lid
G 161% due 02718/ 3038 173 167
Hyundai Auto Lesse Sscuritization Trest
5. T2 due 00/15/2026 1. 231 1, 232
Invesco Buro QL0 T DAC
. BIT% due 07/ 16/2031 EL® 500 520
Jubdleo CLO DAC
3. TETS due D415/ 3030 2,000 2, =
38T due 04152031 1. 000 1. 40
EER C10 18 Led
G 202% due 07, 18/2030 5 247 b 2}
LAD Aato Receivables Trust
5, 000% due 06153027 1, 200 1. 187
LL Assot-Backed Securities Trust
L 0T0% due 0615,/ 2029 “ gl
Madison Park Fonding XL Lid
6. 103% due 04222027 56 52
Madison Park Funding XXV Lid
G 405% due 07/ 39,/32030 el 44
Magnetite XIV-R Ltd
b 382% due 10718/ 2031 2,800 LT
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Man GLG Burs CLO IET DAC
3 857T% due 10/15/2080 EiR it 1 )
Marble Point CLO X Led
b 300% due §0ES/2030 3 2. 568 2 b8
Mercedes—Benz Aute Receivables Trust
5 000N due 00152026 <. 500 2 490
5. 260% due 1071573025 1.A34 1. 4%
WFl Led.
G 1901% dus 107162036 o600 2. B34
WF1 Multifamily Housing Mortgage Loan Trust
G 031% due 077 152036 1. 089 1. 070
MidDcein Cradit CLO 11
B 329% due 0] ,/29,/2030 1, &80 I, 675
Midocwsn Credit CLO WIII
B AZ due 02,/30,/3031 1. 68T 1. 670
MMAF Bquipmest Finance LLC
5. 5700 due 09/08/2025 1, 604 1, 653
Mountain Yiew CLO LLC
B 350% due 10 16/3029 L] 470
Navient Private Bducation Loan Trust
L 650% due 12/15/2028 3 3
Mavient Private Bducation Refi Loan Trust
L 170 due 06 15,2064 28 213
Lo 310% due 0715/ 2069 B0 Bll
1. G900 due 06/ 15/2089 1 848
G LOT% due 415,/ 2069 1, 082 1, 064
Nolpet Studest Loan Trust
5838 doe 06273038 1. 100 1. 081
O HEES due 09352065 7 72
B 938% due 0825,/ 2067 473 466
5. U8E% due 02/25/2066 200 1176
6. 035% due 06,27 2067 ] LT
Nissan Auto Lesse Trust
5o 100N due O3 1T/ 2025 B, 500 B, 768
K Hill Burcpean Credity Partoers VII DAC
3004 due 10/20,/2031 EER 1, 6040 1, a3
OCF Bare CLO DAC
4. 000% due 09/22/3034 2,400 2,489
O7LM XV Led
G MBS due 0616,/ 2030 3 1. 851 1, B35
Palmer Square Burcpean Loan Punding DAC
3 05T% due 04S15/2031 FLR pie) 0
Popper SPARKT Trust Me.3
4. B65% due 08/17/2028 AT 358 Fi.x
PFP Led,
5. U5TH due 04112038 3 k] o)
T.331% due 08/ 19,/2035 1, 0a 98
SLC Swdent Lesn Trust
5 OIR1N due 0515/ 2020 67 2]
5ME Private Educatiom Losn Trost
L% due 03/17/2053 356 7
1. 600% due 08 15,2054 350 314
0. 207% due 07715/ 2053 513 566
Soffi Consuser Loan Progrms Trust
B BI0% due 05/ 15,/ 2031 L] i1
G 210% due 04, 15/2031 1.341 1.3
Scund Point C1O XIV Led,
G 203% due 0133/ 2029 166 165
Sound Point CLO XV Ltd
G 173% due 00/23/2029 |, 206 1, 556
Sound Point CLO XVI Ltd
B T3E% due 07253030 2. 160 13
Stoseponk Asset-Backed Securities
2.301% due (283033 207 191

129/243



2023

Sympheony Static CLO I Led
6. 085% due 10/25,/2029
Theorem Funding Trust
Lo2E0% die B2UESS202T
THL Credit Wind River CLO Ltd
o 340% due B4 15/2031
Towd Point Asset Trust

5. 845% due 11,/20,/2061
Trales CLO 11 Led.

G670 due 0730/ X029
Venture 36 CLO Lid

G 3800 due 4,/ 20,/2032
Venture XVIT CLO Lid

G 140% due (4152027
Venture XXVI (L0 Ltd

G 350% due D120/ 2029
VUG Finance LLC

Bo211% due 06/ 16/ 2056
World Oeni Auto Receivebles Trust
5. 3508 dus 11716,/ 2036

5. 302% due 07/ 15/2026

Ty bty TR
(R $129, 020)
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WEHEH e
(52 tid] [ WA
B9 5 £18
M M
2,904 L B48
164 161
1251 1. 26
2.7 2 678
510 807
(1] 50
L] B
1. 100 1. 05
1. 500 1, 500
126, (48

Expert-laport Bank of Eorea

4 G25% due 10,/30/2023

Intermational Bank for Reconstruction & Develepment
(. G50 due D F0/ 3006

bR Y
(BRI §4, 147)

4, 000 = el
1. 504 1. 356
3, 957

MUFG Benk Ltd
3 THES due 13020/2023 0 (e)

1, 000 BT

TSk » et 8O

hearicen Electric Power Co., Imc
SoATTR due 06532003 (o)
ATRT, Ine.

5o 0% due 117202023 (e}
Enbridge I 5., Inc. {e)

SoA18% due 06152023

5. 422% due 06,20,/ 2023

Global Payments, Inc (g}

AT due 06212023

5COTTS due D6/06/2023

Mendelez Internaticoal, Ine. (<)
& AT due 06/ 1372023

B ATO% due 07,14,/ 2023

NextEra Hnergy Capital Holdiegs, Inc
5, 427% due 06/25/2033 ()
Quanta Sorwices, Inc

5. BETN due 06062003 (d)
Raythaon Technologies Corp.

5. 400% due O7/12/2023 ()
Southern Califernia Edisen Co.

B G0E% due 06S01/2023 (c)
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14900 1. 8%
3,050 3,000
3,050 3,030
40 35
16, 804 1, 790
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WEER e
(i) {Fuizh

Tarpermedin Holdings, Ine.
49 due 0315,/ 2004 (d) b 1. 30 E 1273
5. e diee 0152004 () 1, 004 Ll
6. 333 due 03/15/2024 (d) 1,604 1. B0
3, 813

i WA
hustralin and New Zealand Backing Growp Ltd

LOBTON due 06012023 MD 15 =
4. 580% due 06,/00/2003 5 1 1
Hank of Mova Scotia
¥ 5500% due 06,00/ 2023 CAb 109 i
4. BE0H duo D601/ 3025 3 s ]
BNF Paribas Bank
2. 020% doe 06/D1/ 2023 K 2 L}
Brown Brothers Harrimsn & Co
(0, 370%) due 06002023 ¥ 4 [}
3 0% due D6/D1/3023 GEP 4 5
A TT0% doe 0601/ 2023 o] T d
Cltibank N A
4. 680N due 0G/01/ 3023 -1 bl o
IES Bank Ltd
4. pEO% duc D6/DL/2023 156 156
i Bank ASA
LETON doe D6/DI/2023 ALD -] 16
HSBC Bank PLC
2. 360% due 06,/D1/2023 EUR 18 1=
e GA0% due 0601023 GE 134 173
JPorgen Chase Bank M. A
1. 580% due D601/ 3023 5 127 127
MUFG Bank Ltd
(0. 370%6) due 06002028 ¥ 234 2
Royal Bank of Canada
4. 580% due 06,/001/2023 i 1 1
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp
(0, 3708} due 06/00,/2023 ¥ LE] L}
. 300% due DESDLS20IT EL® 40 43
FHON due 06002023 GEF 23 24
4. 580 due 060072023 i 18 18
Sumitomo Mitsai Trust Bank Ltd
(0. 370%) due 06/01/202% ¥ 747 5
2 B600% due 06/01/2023 ELR 3 3
G0N due 06013023 GEF 118 147
4. 5408 due 06/01/2023 ] 351 351
1,312

5o 400N doe 100G/ 2023 (b () k1 14, 400 5 14, 162
I RN £ g8, ¥
(BRI 568, 433)
BEWEERGH () 1053 ) &4, 655
(BRI 5576, 136)
ST AT TR

() (B} (0. 6%} (2,787
(BBREE 272 7 0, S 30
oo Rl LA, W ) i35, 137}
R 100. 0% 3 534, 131
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ErRE T EREE P | S

+  YoRmER, THAERRCESTASLEERTEERLTVSI 2800,

(u) 202345 0 30 AEECERNEZEEL LI ORTEERA ORI, RREETSNRED 6.3, SO MBICHTE L6, ¥R 56N BE
R A, BECREESED . NESDSE0RCEIEL DRI,

v} SFSRTES.

e} F—lal, WRETSRE D ERT.

& =il WMETORETSRE ERxT,

A i Nc] B S5 5
RITHE T F—# (AR (A8 %) NI It! BRI
Credit Suizse AG 5 16T% 117202023 [P ) L} Ll ] g (L0 0. 36%
[Mutsche Eank AG i, ST 05,/28.°2024 [ L | ] @947 L] 0o, 15%
WUFG Bank Lid, 3. TEEL 1221202 (6206, 2023 [ 7 0,10
ol iy § 372 §  35m [N

A E O E O D R |

i3] WRR
HEH EAEREY  (ASBASE M85 A LN A B A
s 5,230 05/31/ 023 D60172023 1 {2, i) i €2, 630}
2 L $ (2, 630)
HEHEA L LTI EENONEONE
REyOmiraER R
A==t A PBLEF
MBS WAET MNENEWE  0EM &t
i L
U §  dz.630 g 05 03 05 (263
A R § (2, 630} § [ H [ o 3§ {2, 630)
AN [ (2, B30} $ [] ] o ] [] {2, 6300
LR e SR ! {2, 630)

A o Ao o BE e I |
BT, M2 iE5 A 31 HEES, HEFDLSEAA I 0RO EREREIONES LTEAS (2R SAtRFROERTHD,

(f) 2023460 31 BME, UFOw2 S —ROORIIZE-SE, ERE 2001 3% FAooiil) R ER Lo TE,

LA AL WL fRAILE ETF
D WL B s WD i TOEORE 0% T A
HEN e aRbE RS A ERGRS|EN WA (SHD —dEE
e e B
[Hrs H i 5 dlea0r % il 5 1] 5 dhesdy § 2,601 5 ]
HALS LEOROFSMBNRS & § 0 5 (e 3 [ ; [

Y oman SN 3L BT B, R AR RN AN S T RN AT, R LT e L, CENRARL, SMPNE S, MR LR s
ALARREELI LR,

FoEmsad— e —liil, EEFRITAYONENLS RiE . IMES ol oEilrR, @AREEELOROEERBR S G Rl —d,
B B & WSR2 8 — RN T MR N SR IMA ST SRS, v A F—IRREE T SR T, BRI SR
BaiEls 'vAy-p@nn semo L,
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L N (R o L A
I.3 Treasury 2-Year Note Septesber Shart 0970023 % 3 B0 § o 3 [hal
Futires
IS, Tressury S-Year Note Septesber Shart LU n ek | 137 {25 o (44)
Futures
IS5 Tressury 10-Yeor Sote September Short 092023 T (1 1] {3
Fatures
U.3 Treossury Ultra 10-Year Note Shart 092023 13 {1 1 -1
Septesber Futures
U.5 Tressury Ultra 30-Vesr Bond Short 092023 1 (L] 1] {6}
Sepiembor Futures
b E b ] 5 ] 0 $ {194}
a7 RE

[ L] AWM o iz Ao
il Pl (Ep) &8 (A8 Sarikd B § E] {3 A
CI IG-39 Imdex {1, 00%) 12720,/ 2027 5 600 % (60} 5 3 5 | i 0
COOL 1G-40 Index {1, 000%) 0620,/ 2028 G, 200 (1, 16%9) (473 i 0
AT T i (1,239) 5 (506) i 33 i 0

ot o i ¢ S A TR A A R D ke SR U 4 o IRE B

BT, H2ESFELA 3 B NG Yo7 o R E i R e S A S ST 4T 1 IR RS L PR ol TS,

2023 5 A 31 BMHE, 2,936 B FA-OMEN, EEERT AT SHEBLURTRREOMRE LGB AF 0 FEROMEE LT
NERTVE, »2 8 —HRNKHIC 0TS R0eC-T, HEE s ERE0ES (v —HRae) t8Ens k,

S U AT 4 TR AT 4T 4 TR
EREERE EREaS
B S B i
[N HH
AT K  AU-TEN i FF it AT TRE £t
T U oAF o TSR
MMt D
ST U AT RGN o § 0§ pi 0 ] 2§ 0§ {164) § [ {194}

W Frr PR F e »ONETRS, BFOA 7 2 7RACEATERSAL L CEMAFRSE-SEE, Pr-FiL (1] A7 2 70MERECS L i
EFOF L 2OBVFLLERL, BEERGLILET AR EWMEY SRERE NS0, LR () AT e PRI R E R L s
o L R R T TR T L R L R L LR TR S,

' WEOAD e FRRORATEREAE DI ANYR SRS, T e FAER Y oF S o RO RE LTERI 2L, AN 0F X W oa O R
L Looamd 5 2 kot S bk R,

ARy kT Aok AT FFREEL ST, BEELERERR, R AT —w R s DA QRS ES LTOREORNEREL, 2V
b AP T LaTORBAR (KBNS & MENE 2 —SALE  RMARS AT » TRAGEELETHI SR SR, fl2 7 o Ete
R L O i B Sev e, 0w Le AR e, 2P UEEORETER S A CEEERTTO A ALt nin
ERE AUETLL S | S T P S
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(h) ST U 57 ¢ SRR ;T ST U S

HE TR
A ARHPE S ()
il LA/ 4E) il | B | wE Al
T4 06/ 2003 [HE 191 5 210 3 L] 5 ]
A 6,123 GEP o 253 3 ]
A D6/ 2023 H 1,881 CAD 2, T L] o
T4 (82003 AT 25, 531 H 17,258 i ]
[t} 08,2003 H 2, (et an F,128 L] 165y
4 B30I CAD z, 700 H L, 988 0 By
I3 06/ 2023 ALD L 140 751 14 o
BFS R e ] ELR 16, 440 18, 180 B ]
bPs 06/ 2023 ] 21 AlD 41 L o
IS 06,/ 2023 417 as L o
IFs 0672003 132 ¥ 18, 537 l ]
BES 07/ 2003 185 25, 667 L] o
CEk 062023 CAD Al t 414 1 ]
CBE (46,2003 ) 411 CAD 561 1 ]
CBk [EFR ] CAD 560 H a1l L (1}
MBC O/ 2023 3 11, 364 GHP o, 187 22 o
MBC 03/ 2003 G 9, 187 H 1h,372 L 123
Ml D623 ALp 25 146 1 o
url 06/ 2023 320 248 2 o
Wl 062003 IR a0 2 L L
L8 06/ 2003 H 214 JPE 20, 4By L] o
uyl 06,/ 2023 az 7,252 9 o
506G 062003 460 A b5 L] 3
S0 D6/2023 v, 85k EUR 16, 631 1] {126)
LY 072023 ALD baz 5 361 i ]
506G 07/ 2003 ELR 16, 831 17,891 125 ]
TOR D623 H 191 AR A Q (2
TOR 072023 ALD 4 H 191 2 ]
IaG 6./ 2003 Gie 8, 085 11,221 &5 ]
A G620 5 65 AlD il L (o
I'AG 07/ 2023 ALD o 3 G5 1 0
3 1. 624 H [228)
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2023 31

BaAdSa (~eiin) hETHEN

2
:
2

ik (A4 | LT HfK
AZIy 06,2033 Al T, a0 3 1.811 3 47 ] ]
Al 07/ 2003 5 +, 817 ALy 7. 360 L] (4=
11y 062003 A 18,975 4 12932 & o
A O 2005 5 7, 730 ATk 11, G656 L (180)
Bk 072003 11, 14 18, 368 L] 37
s 062023 131 2 L] o
CBK DR 2023 Al 4. 748 ] &, 05 21 o
CBK 0./ 2023 3 val AU L. 150 L] {18y
CBk 0720 3,071 4,707 L] 4 H]
GLM D6/ 2003 178 267 L (50
MBC 062003 2,834 4,272 L] {64
178 06/ 2023 Al 158 3 316 ] i
w1 06/ 2023 5 L, 995 ALy 21188 L] {282}
L1} D6/ 2003 248 dE0 L] (2h
RBC e ] Al 80 1 6 L] o
R D 2003 5 8 AR 117 L (3}
RBC 07/ 2083 240 380 L] ]
RYL 062023 Al 13 k1 L] L] o
0% 06/2023 3, GG 3, 6 31 i
SCK 062003 3 1138 ALY L7 L] {1890
5% 072003 3704 &, G0 ] {3
S0 06,2023 AUD 11,292 ] 7478 71 o
S0G [Erp 5 7,388 ALTE 10,392 L] {71
TOR 062023 AlD 12,001 3 7,830 73 i
TOR D5,/ 2023 % 4,452 ALY &, 671 (] (158
TOR 07/ 2053 T He 13, 00] @ {73
G 062003 Al B, 227 ] 5, 379 55 o
UG g 2003 5 14, 004 AR 20,170 L DAt
UAG 072023 B, M8 B 170 L] (54}
3 da 3 {1,349

¥ A EMAEE (W)

HER [H /) i | e I L Ak
A DS 2003 JPE 4,350 653 5 31161 3 L] 3 o
{0 T § 11, 345 JFY 1,537,871 (1] {3400
07/2003 31, 029 4,312,991 5 i
BFs D6 20T3 JPE 4548, 061 3 3E603 E] o
123 06,3003 L 181 Iy 24,685 (] i)
IFs 0772033 41, 029 4,315, 99] E o
CBK 06 2023 36 1,191 L] o
[N 06,2003 506 70, 407 (] {5
L 062023 18, 617 2470, 979 L] (=31}
D6/ 2003 I 1%, 534 3 1060 3 ]
RBC 062023 3 31, 370 JFY 4,252 882 L] (940
5CK 06,/ 2023 JPP 3. 658, 423 3 2B, 1BS L] 1]
SCK D6/ 2003 5 31, 397 JPY 4,255,274 L] [EE 1]
50K 072023 6, 178 3, 3K, 658 4 1]
] 6l i 3, 084D
BTSN 3 2,085 3 {4, B61)
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy

Statement of Financial Position

As at July 31, 2023

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Asgets Julby 31, 2023 July 31, 2032

Financial assets at far vaue through profit or loss (MNote 2,2, 5, 6) £ 42,800,890 k1 19,813,183

Cash and cash equivalents (Mote 2 1) 44424 152,716

Prapaid faees 15,364 30978

Recevables for
Unds issued (Mate 210, 3) 233,306 379,198
Sale of Investvent in the Selected Fund (MNote 2.4} ~ 1.026

Tatal assats 43 349% 984 20,386 101

Liabilities

Financial lisbikties 2 lair value through prolit or loss (Mote 22, 5, 6} 1,208,857 Fa1.448

Fayables for
Purchase of lmvestment in the Selactad Fund (Mote 2 4) 208,979 380,213
Investment management fees (Mote 8 10} 7500 L2818
Professional fees (Mote 8.1F) 52424 34 804
Linits repurchased (Mote 2 10, 3) 24,222 =
Cuestmbution fees (Mate & 1C) 16,956 T.020
Custody fees (Mote 8.18) T.701 4,746
Administrator fees (Mote & 1A) 7.574 7573
Fea agent leas (Note & 28) 4,229 4,278
Transler agent fees (Mot 8 1E) 3745 1.670
Printng fess 2699 2498
Agant mambed compasny feas (Note 8 20) 351 161

Liabilikes (excluding aguity) 1,715,742 1,457 340

Equily [being net assets atinbutable o the holders of units) § 41,678,242 i 18,92¢ 761

The accompanying notes are an ntegral part of these inancial statemants
1
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PIMCO Short Term Strategy

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended July 31, 2023
(Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

Income SJuby 31, 2023 Juhy 31, 20E2
Met incomed{loss) from financial instruments at FYTFL™
Intarast intoms L9 9735 3 373
Met realzed {105s) on inancial assets and Habilties at far value
through proft of loss (Mote 2.11, 7) [3.034,355) (12534,514)
Met changs in unrealized appraciation! [depreciation) on financial
assets and liabities at fair value through profit or loss (2.2, 211, T) 1,253,990 [3.365182)
Met realized {loss)igain on foreign cumency transachons (Mote 2 6) {170,848} 538
Met change in unrealized appraciation on forgign currency transtations
(Mote 2.6) 2533 3441
Total [loss) (1,933 955) (152895 3434
Expenses
Custribwstion fees (Note 8 1C) 135,403 90, 5
Investrnent management fees (Mote 210 112,836 88,085
Adminisirabor fees (Mote 8 14) 45 001 45,001
Professional fees (Mote 8 1F) 42115 53,231
Custody fees (MNote 3.1B) 41,962 3.7
Fes agant fess (Mate & 2B) 38,646 30,567
Organizabon expenses 24,018 A2
Prnting fees 23,9244 37318
Transtar agent feas (MNote £ 1E) 18,239 12,444
Agent mamber company feas (Note 8200 3,324 2517
Total expanses 485 408 471 921
Operating (loss) (2424 363) (16,317 264)

Total comprehensive (loss) (being [decrease) in net assets attributable
to the helders of units from operations) 3 (2424 363) £ (16317 264}

0 This relstes to net income from financial instruments measured 21 fair value through peofit or less (FWTRLY)
including resized and unréealized gainsilossas) on financial assets and labilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The accompanying notes are an ntegral part of these inancial statemants
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{Expressed in U.S. Dolfars)

At Juhy 31, 2021 35 4581 618
|55ue of units (Mote 3) 6,395 565
Rapurchases of units (Note 2 8, 3) (6.631,158)
Total compeehensnva [loss) (Deing (dacraass) in net assets

atributable ta the halders of unils from ﬁnara_[mn-;.'l {16317 264)
At Juhy 31, 2022 16,928 761
Issue of units (Mote 3) 32913455
Repurchases of units (Mate 2.8, 3) (7.730,611)
Tatal comperehensnes (loss) [being (dacraass) in net assels

i{tr’lbu[a_tll-} 0 Choe vl s ol units from GDBI'@IIEIHIS-'I 2424 363)
At Julby 31, 41678 242

The ac COMpamying notes aré an nitegral part of these imancial statemants
3
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{Expressed in U.S. Dolfars)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Taotal comprehensive (loss) [Deing (decrease) in net assets attnbutable

Lo the holders of units from operations)

Adiustiments 1o reconcle total comprehensie inComaess) (Deng
incregseldecraase) in net assets atnbutable to the holders of units

from operations) o cash provided by used in) cperating activities
Furchases of Investment in the Selacted Fund
Procesads from dispostion of Investment in the Salected Fund
Met {peyments) from setflement of forward contracts

Mat realized loss on financial assats and habikties o far value through

profit or I0ss

Mat changs in unrealized (apprecialion Pdepsaciabon on financial

acsels and habdeies a1 fair v aus through prolit of kss

Decreass in recervables for sate of Invastment in the Selected Fund
Dacroass in propaid fees

{Decrease) in payables for purchase of Investment in the

Selected Fund

Increase in cther payables™
et cash (used in] operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceads from unis issued, met of change in recedyaties for wits

I8sed

Repurchases of unds, net of change in payables for units repurchased

Met cash provided by financing activities

Met increasal{dacreassa) in cash and cash egquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (Mote 2 1)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Mote 2.1)

Supplamentary nformation on cash floves from operatng actvilias

Inberest recened

Julby 31, 2023 July 31, 2022
L3 (2,424 363) 3 (16,317 264)
{34,135 £05) (12113723
12,883 530 25,638,115
(5,297 498) [13.070,263)
3034355 12534514
[1,253,580) 3,365,182
1.026 143974
24614 27413
(171,244) (3,096 304)
83015 7837
{25,152 250) 2 873533)
33059347 9,506 336
(7.715.389) (6, Bdd 527)
25343058 2 861,709
191,708 {11814)
152 716 164 530
g 344 424 i 15_2.?16
5 8725 3 373

0 Other payables comprise of professional fees, distnbution fees, fee agent fees, iInvastment management fees, administrator fees,
custody fees, transfer agent fees, printing fées and agent member company fees, as disclosed m the Statement of Financial

Posiion

The accompanying notes are an ntegral part of these inancial statemants
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1. ORGANIZATION

PIMCO Sher Temn Siralegy (the “Series Trust) is a Series Trust of Credil Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) lIl (the
“Trust™), an open-ended umbrella unit trus! constituted by a Master Trust Deed dated December 2, 2012 under
Cayman Islands law. The Series Trust was established pursuant fo a Supplemental Trust Deed dated July 5. 2013
and executed hy‘ Elian Truslee ICHE'I‘I'IHI‘I':I Limited (the "Trustee™), a lrust company |!'I¢1:II“F|CII'3|M under the laws of the
Cayman Islands. The Series Trust commenced operations on July 29, 2019,

The Trust is an exempted unit trust under the Trusts Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands and registered under
the Mulual Funds Acl (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands on January 22, 2014,

The principal office for the Trustes (and therefore the Series Trust) is One MNexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
KY1-3005, Cayman Islands.

On December &, 2021, Corporalion Service Company ("CSC") announced that a conditional agreemeni had been
reached on a recommended public offer for all issued and oulstanding ordinary shares of which the Truslee is
awholly owned subsidiary. In Movember 2022, CSC closed on ils acquisition of Intertrust Group,

The manager of the Series Trust is Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the "Manager”).

The Adminisiralor, Custodian and Transfer Agenl of the Series Trust is Brown Brothers Hammiman & Co, (the
“Administrator”, “Custodian” and “Transfer Agent”).

Credit Suisse Intemational acts as the Fee Agent (the “Fea Agemnl™ and Currency Administrator (the “Currency
Adminisirater”).

Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the “Agent Member Company™).
The Investment Manager of the Series Trust is PIMCO Japan Lid {the “Invesiment Manager”).

The Manager has aulhorized SMEBC Nikko Securities Inc, to acl as the Dislibutor (the Distributor™) of the unids in
Japan.

The Series Trust i denominated in U. 5. Dollars (USD” or “$7). One class of units in the Series Trust is currently
available for issue: TRY Class Units. The TRY Class Units are denominated in Turkish Lira ("TRY™).

The investment cbjective of the Seres Trust is to seek maximum currenl income, consistent with preservation of
capital and dally liguidity, by investing indirectly in a diversified porifolio of mainly invesiment grade deb! securilies
deneminated in U.Z. Dollars. The Series Trust seeks lo achieve its investment objective by imvesling substantialty all
of the assels of the Series Trust into the Class C (USD) Class Units of PIMCO Shord-Temm Stralegy (the "Selecled
Fund"),

The Selecled Fund Is & series trust of PIMCO Bermuda Trust, an umbrella unit lrust esiablished under the laws of
Eermuda as a multl-series trust (Ihe “Umbralla Trust®).

The Investment objective of the Selected Fund Is to seek maximum current Income, consistend with preservation of
capital and dally lguidity. Pacific Invesiment Management Company LLC, which has experise in managing fixed
Income Instruments, Is acling as bolh manager of the Selected Fund (the "SF Manager®) and investment adviser of
lhe Selected Fund (he "SF Invesiment Adviser”). The base currency of the Class C (USD) Class Units Is USD. In
consirucling the porfolie of the Selected Fund, the SF Manager and SF Investment Adviser seek lo ensure high
liquidity and stability by confrolling interest rate and credit risks.

The Investment Manager of the Serles Trust shall have day-to-day invesiment decision-making and ongeing

monitering respensibility over the portion of the Series Trust's porifolio comprising the Selecled Fund and USD cash
and money markel securities (the "Subadvised Porfolio®).

Ab Juby 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 the Series Trust held 7.9% and 4.7%, respeclively, of the Selecled Fund's net
assels.

Currenily the Selected Fund has six Classes of unils - Class AUD, Class C (USD). Class J (JPY). Class J (USD),
Class JPY and Class USD. The Seres Trust invests inlo the Selected Fund by purchasing lhe Selected Fund's

The sccompanmying noles are an mniegral part of these lnancial statemants
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panicipating shares in the Class C (USD). The Selected Fund allows repurchases of these shares on any business
day.

tovements in the fair value of the Selected Fund's portfolio and corresponding movements in the fair value of the
Selacled Fund may expose the Series Trust to a loss.

Final Repurchase Day

The Series Trust will continue until the earlier of December 1, 2163 and the eariest practicable repurchase day
following the occurrence of a compulsory repurchase event (the “Final Repurchase Day”), unless terminated earlier in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

If the Trustee and the Manager agree thal all of the units are compulsorily repurchased (such event, a "Compulsory
Repurchase Evenl™).

Upon the occurrence of a Compulsory Repurchase Event, each unit is repurchased on the Final Repurchase Day al
the final repurchase price per unil. The final repurchase price per unit of a class of units is calculated by the
Adminisirator in iis sole discretion in accordance wilh the Offering Memorandum and the Appendix 32 as the net
assel value ("Mel Assel Value” being the value of its lotal assets minus its liabilties including accrued fees and
expenses) per unil of such class of units on the Final Repurchase Day (or if such day is not also a valuation day the
immediately preceding valuation day). Repurchase Day is each dealing day which is also a day on which no Series
Trust disruptien event occurs andfor such other day or days as lhe Manager may from lime lo lime delermine in
respect of the Series Trusl. Unitholder is able o receive an amouni in respect of each unit of a class of unils
repurchased on any Repurchase Day prior to the Final Repurchase Day equal to the Mel Assel Value per unit of such
class of units as at the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day is not also a wvalualion day the
immediately preceding valuation day) (lhe "Repurchase Price”). There is no repurchase fee applied to lhe
Repurchase Price in respect of each unit being repurchased.

On March 19, 2023, UBS Group AG ("UBS") agreed 1o acquire Credit Suisse Group AG ("Credit Suisse”) following
intervention by the Swiss Federal Depadment of Finance. the Swiss Mational Bank and the Swiss Financial Market
Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

On June 12, 2023, LIES Group AG compleled the take over of Credil Suizse Group AG,

The Seriez Trust holds investmenis in financial assels with Credit Suisse International as the counterparly, The
Manager and the Trustee do not view these exposures as material to the Serles Trust nor do these exposures cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to conlinue as a going concern,

The financial stalements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on Movember 20, 2023,

2. SUMMARY OF SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial stalemenis are set oul below. These
policlies have been consistenilty applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwize staled. The financia
statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The
preparalion of financial statements in accordance with IFRS regquires the use of cerain critical aceounting estim ates
and requires the Trustee and the Manager to exercise thelr judgment in the process of applying the Series Trusl's
accounting policies. Areas where assumptions and estimates are significant lo lhe financial statements are disclosed
in Mote 4. Aclual results may differ from these eslimates,

The Series Trust has adopled |nvestment Entities (Amendments lo IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and |AS 2T) (2012) (lthe
Amendments). Management concluded that the Serdes Trust meets the definition of an investment enfity.

Classification and measurement of financial azsets and financial liabilities

IFRE 3 contains three principal classification calegories for financlal assels: measured at amoriized cost, fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVOCH). The classification of
financial assels under IFRS 2 is generally based on the business model in which a financial assel is managed and s
contraciual cash flow characteristics.

On Initial recogniion, the Serles Trust classifies financlal assels as measured al amortized cosl or FVTPL.
A financial asset is measured al amonized cost if it meels both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FYTPL:

The accompanying noles are an niegral part of these lnancial statemaents
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iy It iz held within a business model whose objeclive i& to hold assels fo collect contractual cash flows:;
and,

iy Its contraclual terms give rise on specified dales lo cash flows that are solely represeni paymenis of
principal and inmereast (SPPI).

A financial assel Is measured at fair value through profit or less if any of the following apply:

Iy Itz contractual terrms do nol give rise fo cash flows on specified dales thal are solely paymenis of
principal and interast (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding;

iy Itis not held within a business model whose objective is either o collect coniractual cash flows, or 1o
both collect contractual cash Mows and sell;

iy Al Initial recognition, i Is irrevecably designated as measured at FVTPL when doing so eliminates or
significantty reduces a8 measurement or recognifion inconsistency that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or liabillies or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases,

In assessing whether the coniraclual cash fMlows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the contractual lerms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial assel conlains a contraciual term thal could change the
liming or amount of confraciual cash flows such that it would nel meet this condition. In making this assessment. the
Series Trust considers:

- confingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows:
- leverage features;
- prepayment and extension features;

- lerms that limit the Seres Trust's claim to cash flows from specified assels (e.g. non-recourse fealures);
and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money {e.g. periodical reset of inlerest rates).
The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

- Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalenis, prepaid fees and recelvables
for units issued and receivable for sale of investment in the Selected Fund, These financial assels are
held to collect coniractual cash flow,

- Other business model: this includes financial assets al fair value through profit or loss (Investment in the
Selected Fund and derivative financial instruments). These financial assels are managed and fheir
performance is evalualed, on a fair value basis. with frequent sales laking place.

In making an assessment of the objeclive of the business model in which a financlal asset iz held. the Series Trust
considers all of the relevan! information about how the business is managed. including:

- the documemed imrestment stralegy and the execulion of this strategy in practice. This includes whether
the investment strategy focuses on earning confraciual interest income, maintaining a parficular interest
rate profile, malching the duration of the financial assels to the duration of any related liabilties or
expecled cash oulflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assels:

= how the performance of the porifolio Is evaluated and reporied 1o the Series Trust's management:

- Ihe risks that affect the performance of the business model (and lhe financial assels held wilhin lhat
business model) and how those risks are managed,

how the investment manager & compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assels managed or ihe contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, velume and liming of sales of financial assels in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectalions about fulure sales aclivity.
Transfers of financial assels to lhird parlies in lransaclions thal do nol gualify for derecognition are nol considered
sales for this purpose. consislent with the Series Trust's continuing recognition of the assels.

Impairment of financial assets

The accompanying notes arne an integral part of these fnancial statements
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The ‘expected credi loss’ (ECL) model applies lo financial assets measured al amorized cost and debl Investmenis
at FVOC!, bul not to Invesiments in e quity instrumenis.

Based on the Serles Trust's assessment, the ECL model does nol have a material impact on the Seres Trust's
financial assels because:

= The majority of the financial assels are measured at FVTPL and the impalrment requirementis do not apply
to such instrumentis.

- The financial assets al amorized cosl are shor-term (L. no longer than 12 months), of high credit quality
andfor highly collaleralized. Accordingty, the ECLs on such assels are expecied to be small.

Mew stand ards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the year ended July 31, 2023:

A number of new standards and amendments lo slandards are effective for annual periods beginning after August 1,
2022 and earlier applicalion is permitted; however, the Serles Trust has not eary applied these new or amended
slandards in preparing these financial statements as lhey de not have a material effect on the Seres Trust's financial
statements.

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Series Trust considers all cash, foreign cash and short-lerm deposits with original maturity af three months ar
less to be cash and cash equivalents.

At Juby 31, 2023 and Juty 31, 2022 the Series Trusl held the fellowing balances as cash and cash equivalenis:

2023 2022
Cash £ 68 % 12
Time deposit 327 615 152 574
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position 3 344,424 5 162,716

2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

(A) Classification
The Series Trust classifies financial assels and liabildies into the following categories:

Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss:
*  Mandatoriy at FVYTPL: Investment in Ihe Selected Fund and derivative financial instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

July 31, 2023 July 31, 2023
« Fair Value - Cost
Irvestment in the Selected Fund + 42,791,195 3 41 500,919
Irvestmant in forward coniracts 49 695 -
Total inancial a55els & lair vaiue thraugh profit of loss £ 42 200 BRI : ] 41 500919
July 31, 2022 July 31, 2022
- Fair Value - Cost
Imvastment in the Salected Fund £ 10,800 844 3 20,084 B11
Imvestment in forward contracts 3,359 -
Tatal inancial a55ets of fair vaiue thraugh profit or koss + 19813, 183 * 20 084 511

Financial assets at amorized cost:
= Cash and cash equivalenis, prepald fees and recelvables for unils Issued and recefvable for sale of
imvesiment In the Selected Fund.
Financlal liabliitles al falr value ihrough profi or loss:
«  Mandatority at FVYTPL: derivative financial instruments .

Financial liabilities ai falr value lhrough profit or loss censist of the fellowing:

The accompanmying noles are an niegral part of these lnancial statemaents
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Juby 31, 2023
- Fair Value
Investment in forward contracts E3 1 308 857

Juby 31, 2022
- Fair Value
Ivastmant in Torwand Conlracts £ 901 448

Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
*  Other liabilities: payables for purchase of investment in the Selected Fund, professional fees, distribution
fees, fee agenl fees, units repurchased, investment management fees, administrator fees, custody lees,
transfer agent fees, printing fees and agent member comparny fees.

(B} Recognition/Derecognition

The Series Trusl recognizes financial assets and liabilies on the date i becomes a party to the coniractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investmenis are recognized on the trade dale - the date
on which the Series Trust commiis o purchase or sell the invesiment. Financlal assels are derecognized when the
rights to receive cash flows from the invesiments have expired or the Series Trust has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Financial liabillies are derecognized when ils coniraciual obligations are discharged,
canceled or expirad.

{C) Measurement
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initialty recognized at fair value with fransaction
costs recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent to initial recegnition, all financial assels
and liabilities al fair value through profil or loss are measured at fair value, Gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the ‘financial assels and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss’ calegory are presented in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which lhey arise. Realized gains or losses on sale of
investments are calculated using first-in-first-out method.

Financial asseis and liabilities other than those ai fair value lhrough profit or loss are camied at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method. less impaiment losses, if any. This is considered to approximate fair value due o
the shor-term or immediate nature of these instruments.

(D) Fair Value Estimation
The fair value of financial instruments fraded in active markels (Such as publicly traded derivatives and trading
securities) is based on quated market prices al the close of trading on the reporing date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid fe transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between market paricipants
at the measurement date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. Investments or other assels for
which markel quotations are not readity available are valued at their fair value as determined in good faith in
accordance with procedures adopted by the Trustee with advice from Ihe Manager, The resulling change in
unrealized gains or lesses are reflecled in the Statement of Cemprehensive Income.

(E} Forward Contracts

Foreard confracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a designated financial instrument, currency, commaodity
or an index al a specified fulure dale for a specified price and may be setlled in cash or another financial asset.
Foreward confracts are valued using observable inputs. such as cumency exchange rates or commodity prices, applied
o nolional amounts slated in the applicable contracts. Gains and losses are reported in nel realized gain or loss on
financial assets through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(F) Investment in the Selected Fund

in principte, the Investment Manager will invest a majority of the Net Asset Value in the Selected Fund. The Selected
Fund 5 denominated in USD. The Investment Manager will not imeest in non-USD dencminated assels. The Series
Trust's invesiment in the Selected Fund is subject to the terms and conditions of the Selecled Fund's offering
documentation. The Series Trusl records its investments in the Selected Fund at fak value based primarily on the
Selacted Fund's net assels value ("NAVT, as determined by the administrator of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust
reviews the delails of the repored information oblained from the Selected Fund's administrator and considers: (i) the
liquidity of the Selected Fund, or iis underlying invesimenis, (ii) the value date of the MAV provided, (iii) any
restrictions on redemplions, and (iv) the basis of accounting. Since the Seres Trusl invesls substantially all of its
assels in the Selected Fund, net capital appreciation or depreciation, respectively, of the Series Trust is generally
based on net capilal appreciation or depreciation, respectively, of the Selected Fund. The value of the Seres Trust's

The accompanmying noles are an niegral part of these lnancial statemaents
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investment in the Selected Fund is based on available informalion and does nol necessarily represent the amount
that might uitimately be realzed, as such amount depends on future cireumsiances and cannol reasonably be
denominated uniit the Selecled Fund's underlying invesiment are aclually liquidaled. Fudher, the Series Trusl's
investmenl in the Selected Fund in indirecilly subjected to restrictions, If any, of the liquidity of the Selected Fund's
imvestments.

The Series Trusl's invesiment in the Selected Fund is considerad 1o be liquid and can be redeemed on any business
day. The Series Trust may submil to the Trustee of the Selecled Fund or its duly designaled agent a Repunchase
Molice requesting to have all or a porlion its units repurchased on the relevant repurchase dale. The Trustee of the
Selecled Fund should receive the repurchase notice by electronic transmission on or prior to 7:00 am . Easlern Time
in the United States of America on the applicable repurchase date. If such notice is not respect of the entire helding
unils of the Series Trusl, then the Trustee of the Selected Fund in its sole discretion may apply a minimum
repurchase requirement of more than one unit er TRY 10 (or ils agquivalent in any currency).

2.3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assels and liabilities are offset and the nel amount reported in the Statement of Financial Posilion only
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an ifenlion to settle on a net
basis, or realize the asset and settle the liabilty simullaneously. As ai July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 all financial
assels and liabiities are shown af their gross amounts as none met the criteria fer inancial instrument offselting and
therefore have not been offsel in the Statement of Financial Posilion,

2.4 Receivables for sale and payables for purchase of investment in the Selected Fund

Receivables for invesiments sold and payables for invesiments purchased represent trading transactions that have
been confracted for but not yel seltled on the Slatement of Financial Position dale, respectively, These amounts are
recognized initially and subsequently measured at fair value, less provision for impairment for amounts of receivables
for investments sold, A provision for impairment is established when lthere is objective evidence that the Series Trust
will not be able to coltect all amounts of receivables for Investments sold. Significant financlal difficulties of the broker.
probability that the broker will enfer bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and defaull in payments are considered
indicators fhat the amount of receivables for invesiments sold is impaired,

2.5 Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the Stalement of Comprehensive Income,

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation

(A) Functional and Presentation Currency
The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported lo the investors in LS. Dollars. The Trustee considers
the LS, Dollar as the currency that most faithfully represenis the economic effecls of the underlying Iransactions.
events and conditions of the Series Trust. The financial sialements are presented in LS. Dollars, which is the Series
Trust's funclional and presentation currency.

(B} Transactions and Balances

Financial asseis and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in L%, Dollar amounts al the dafe of
valuation, Purchases and sales of financial assels and liabilities, issue and repurchase of unils and income and
expense lems denominated in foreign currencles are lranslated Into LS. Dollar amounts on the respective dates of
such transactions.

Reported nel realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign exchange
rales on financial assels and labllities at fair value through profit or loss are Included in net realized gain or loss en
financial assets and liabildies at fair value through profit or loss, and net change in unreakzed appreciation or
depreciation on financial assels and liabillies al fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Realized and unrealized appreciation or depreciation from foreign currency fransactions and franslation are disclosed
separately in the Statemen! of Comprehensive Income.

2.7 Distributions

The current policy of the Series Trust. in respect of the TRY Class Units, is that it is nol expected to pay distributions
provided that, the Manager may, in its discrelion, declare and pay distribulions in respect of such class of unils from
lime to lime. The 3F Manager does not curmenily expect to declare distributions with respect to the Selected Fund,

The accompanying neles are an mntegral part of these lnancial statemaents
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If the Manager does declare any dstributions in respect of a class of uniis, it Is anlicipaled thatl any such distribuions
are declared on an annual basis on each distribulion declaralion date and may be made from investment principal
{a realization of units In the Selected Fund) altributable to such class of units.

There were no distribulions dectared and paid during the years ended Juby 31, 2023 and Juty 31, 2022

2.8 Repurchases of Units

The Serles Trusi has unils which are repurchased al the holder's oplion. The Seres Trusi classifies iis putiable
instruments as equity in accordance with 1AS 32 (Amendment) Financial Mstroments: Presentation.
The amendment requines pultable financial instruments thal meet the definition of a financial liability to be classified
as equity where certain strict criteria are mel. Those criteria include:

L] The putlable instruments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of nel assets;
. The putlable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class features must be idenlical;

] Therae must be no contraciual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the obligation
on the issuer to repurchase; and

=  The tolal expecled cash flows from fhe puttable instrument over ils life must be based substantially on the
profit or loss of the issuer.

As lhese condilions were mel. the Series Trust's unils have been classified as equity at July 31, 2023 and July 31.
2022,

Units can be put back to the Series Trust al any lime for cash equal to a proporlionate share of the Series Trust's tofal
equity.

Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Slalement of Financial Position dale if the holder
exercises the right to pul the units back into the Serles Trust.

Units are issued and repurchased al prices based on the Series Trust's total equity per unil at the time of issuwe or
repurchase. The Series Trust’s equity per unit is calculated by dividing the folal equity by the total number of
oulstanding units,

The Selected Fund finances is operalions by issuing redeemable shares which are putiable at the holder's optien
and entitltes the holder lo a proportional stake in the respective Series Trust's net assels. The Series Trust holds
shares in the Selected Fund. The Series Trust's maximum exposure lo loss from its interests in the Selecled Fund is
equal lo the total fair value of its investments in the Selected Fund. Once the Series Trust has disposed of its shares
in the Selected Fund the Series Trust ceases to be exposed to amy risk from the Selected Fund.

2.9 Indemnities

The Trustee and the Manager, on behalf of the Serdes Trust, enler Into certain contracts thal contain a variety of
indemnifications. The Serles Trust's maximum exposure under fhese arrangements is unknown. However, the Series
Trust has net had prior claim g of losses pursuant to these caniracts and expecis the risk of loss to be remate.

2.10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables for Units Repurchased

Receivable for unils issued is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Financial Position
dale. Payable for repurchase of unils is carfed al the repurchase amount that is payable al the Statement of
Financial Posilion date,

2.11 Met incomei|loss) from financial instruments at FYTPL

Mel income from financial instruments al FVYTPL includes realized and unrealized gains or lozses on financial assels
and liabilties al fair value through profit or loss. MNel realized gain or less from fnancial instruments al FYTPL s
cakulated using the firsl in, first oul method. Mel realized gain or loss on financial assels and liabililies at FYTPL
reprezenis the difference between the cost of the financial instruments and is settlement price of the sale trade,

Mel change in unrealized (deprecialion)/appreciation on financial assets and liabilties at FWTPL represenis the
difference bebween the carrying amount of a financial instrument al the beginning of the period. or the iransaction
price if it was purchased in the current reporling period and its carrying amount al the end of the reporing period.
Refer to Mote 7 for furiher details,

The accompanying neles are an mniegral part of these lnancial statemaents
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217 Taxation

The Trust has received am underiaking from the Cayman Islands Govermment exempting i from al local income,
profits and capiial gains taxes untll December 2, 2063 . Mo such taxes are levied in the Cayman |slands & the present
lime.

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by cerain couniries on investment income and capital gains.
Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the Stalement of Comprehensive Income. Mo withhelding
tax expense was pald during the years ended July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022,

The Selected Fund may choose to invest in securities domicied in counlries olher than Cayman Islands. Many of
these foreign countries have lax laws which indicate thal capital gains taxes may be applicable fo non-residenls
including the Selecled Fund. These capital gains taxes are required lo be delermined on a self-assessment basis and,
therefore, such taxes may nol be deducted by the Selected Fund's broker on a "wilhholding' basis.

In accordance with 1AS 12 — Income Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a lax llability when it is probable
that the tax laws of foreign countries require a lax liability 1o be assessed on the Series Trusl's capital gains sourced
fram such foreign couniry, assuming the relevant laxing authorifies hawe full knowledge of all the facts and
circumsiances, The tax lability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant laxation
authorities using the tax laws and rates that have been enacled or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, There is somelimes uncertainty aboul the way enacted tax law is applied to offshere investment Series Trusls,
This creates uncerainty about whether or not a tax liability will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust, Therefore,
when measuring any uncertain tax liabilidies management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances
available at the time which could influence the likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal praclices of the
relevant tax authorities.

Az al July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 the Manager has determined thal the Series Trust did not have a liabliity to
record for anmy unrecognized tax benefil in the accompanying financial stalemenis. While this represents the
Manager's best estimate there remains a risk that the foreign tax awuthorities will altempt to collect taxes on capital
gains eamed by the Series Trust. This could happen without giving prior waming, possibly on a relrospeclive basis,
and could result In & loss to the Series Trust.

2.13 Investment in unconsolidated structured entities
The Series Trust has concluded that all investmenis in the unlisted Selected Fund, in which it holds an inferest but
does nol consolidate, meets the definition of structured entities due to the following:
* the voling righls In these entities are not the dominant righls in deciding who controls them as they relate to
administrative tasks only;
* the entities’ aclivities are restricted by their respective invesiment strategy or offering documents; and
* these entities have a narrow and well-defined objective to provide imvesiment opportunifies to investors.
The nature of and risks associaled with the Series Trusl's inleres! in the olher funds are disclosed in Nole 5,

3. REFURCHASES OF UNITS

The Met Assel Value of each unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the Met Assel Value of the Series Trust
by the lotal number of units of the Seres Trust then oculstanding. The Administrater computes the Met Asset Value of
the Series Trust at the close of business on each dealing day.

The price of units, for all purposes, is calculated and paid in Turkish Lira.
The minimum initial subseription must be no less than 1 unit. All unitholders must complete a subscription application,

The initial purchase price of units is TRY10 per unit, All payments for the units must be made in Turkish Lira.
The Trustee may reject any subscription for any reasen and withoul providing reasons.

After the initial issue of unils, an eligible invesior may subscribe for unils on any subseguent subscription date at the
relevant subscription price. All payments for the units shall be made in Turkish Lira. The Trustee may reject any
subscription fer any reason and withoul providing reasons.

The Trustee or its duly designated agent must receive the subscription price for the units on or prior fo 600 p.m.

{Japan ftime) by no later than the second business day after the relevant subscription date. Subscription applications
are irevocable.

The accompanying notes are an ntegral part of these fnancial statemants
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The total net assels, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of July 31, 2023 were as follows:

Met Asset Value per
Classes of units Tatal net assets Units outstanding unit
Class TRY Units [ 3 41 675,243 49007442 % 0 8504
Met Asset Value per
Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding unit
Clazs TRY Units TRY  1,122,250,603 49007442 TRY 22 3948

The lotal net assels. unils outstanding and nel assets value per unit as of July 31, 2022 were as follows:

Met Asset Value per
Classes of units Total net assets Units sutstanding unit
Class TRY Linits 3 18928, 761 22359417 % 0.gdes
Met Asset Value per
Classes of units Total net assets Units sutstanding unit
Class TRY Linits TRY 339136815 32350497  TRY 151675

As of Juby 31, 2023 and July 21, 2022 all issued units were held by three and twe unitholders, respectively, who hold
100% of interest in the net assets.

Unitholders may transfer their holdings in unifs anly with the prior writlen conzent of the Trustee which consent shall
nel be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Mo transfer of unils will be effective and binding on the Trusiee or
unitholder until entered ifo the Series Trust's register of unitholders.

Each unitholder may submit to the Trustee or i3 duly designated agent a repurchase nofice requesting to have all or
a portlen of its units repurchased at the Repurchase Price on fhe relevant repurchase date. Repurchase orders may
be submitted in units. If such notice is not In respect of the enfire holding units of such unitholder recorded in the
register of unitholders then the Trustee In iz sele discrelion may apply a minimum repurchase requirement of 1 unit.
Repurchase nolices are imevocable.

Al the time of each repurchase of units prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is applied to each unit
being repurchased.

Amounis payable to the unitholders in connection with the repurchase of uniis of any class are pald In cash but may
be made in kind {or partialty in kind) by the distribution of investments held by the Trustee to the extent that the
Trustee. in consultation wilh the Manager. determines It to be in the best interesis of the unilholders. If such a
delermination is made by the Trustee, distributions to all repurchasing unitholders on the same day are made on the
same basis.

Paymen! may also be made in such olher currency that may be freely purchased wilh such applicable cumency as
a unitholders may request, provided that any foreign exchange cost shall be deducted from the amount payable to
such unitholders. Me such repurchase proceeds will bear interest prior lo aclual distribution.

The issue and repurchase of unils and payments in respect of such transaclions will be suspended in any
circumstances where ihe calculation of the Net Asset Value per unit is suspended. The Trustee will inform unitholders
of such a suspension as soon as praclicable afler il is imposed or lifled. Subscriplion applications and repurchase
nolices cannot be withdrawn during such suspension and will be processed for the next subscriplion date or
repurchase dale. as the case may be.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that affect the reporied amounts of assets and
liabilities. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expeclations of future evenis that are believed to be reasenable under the circumstances. The resulling accounting
esfimates will, by definftion, seldom equal the related actual results. The Series Trust may, from time to time, hold
financial instruments that are not quoled in active markels, such as over-the-counter derivatives. Fair values of such
instruments are determined by uzing valustion techniques. Where valuation technigues (for example, models) are
used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by the Manager.

The accompanying notes are an ntegral part of these fnancial statemants
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5. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

5.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust's imvestmen! porfolio mainly comprises of he Selecled Fund. The Series Trust's aclivities expose it
to a variety of financial fsks: marke! risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity isk. The managemeni of ihese risks Is carrled oul by the Manager under policles approved by the Trustee.

The Series Trust may be materially affecled by the aclions of anolher entity investing in the Selecled Fund. For
example, if another unitholder of the Selected Fund repurchases some or all of its interests in the Selected Fund, the
Selecled Fund and, in tum, the Series Trust. may experience higher pro rala operaling expenses, theraby producing
lower relurns, Similarly, the Selected Fund may become less diverse due to repurchases from ifs other unitholders,
resulting in increased portfolio risk. The Seleclted Fund may restrict is investment aclivities or be precluded from
investing in certain instruments due to regulalory restrictions on cerain of its direct or indirect investors or otherwise,
which may have an adverse effect on the performance of the Selected Fund, and, in lurn, the Series Trusl.

{A) Market Risk

(i} Currency Risk

Invesiment in the Selected Fund and forward confracls in which the Series Trus! invests may be denominaled or
quoted in currencies oiher than the functional currency of the Series Trusl. For this reason, changes in foreign
cumency exchange rates can affect the value of the Series Trust's portfalio,

Generalty, when the Series Trust's funclional cumency rises in value against anolher cumency, a securly
denominated in ihal currency loses value because the currency is worth less giving effect o the conversion inte the
Series Trusl's funclional currency. Conversely, when the Seres Trust's funclional currency decreases in value
agalinst ancther currency, a security denominated in that currency gains value.

This nisk. generally knewn as “currency risk,” means lhat a strong functional currency of the Series Trust may reduce
relums lo investors while a weak functional currency of the Series Trust may increase those retums. Currency rates
may fluctuate significantly over shorl periods of ime for a number of reasons, including changes In Inlerest rates,
intervention (or the fallure to inlervene) by the govemments, ceniral banks or supranational entities such as the
International Monelary Fund, or by lhe iImposifion of currency controls or other political developmenis. As a resull, the
Series Trust’s investiments in foreign-currency denominated investments may reduce its relurns. Cerain positions
laken by the Serles Trusi are designed o profit from forecasting currency price movements. Predicting fulure prices
is Inherentty uncerlain and the losses incurred, if the markel moves against a position, will not be hedged. The
speculaiive aspecl of attempting to predict absolute price mevemenis |s generally perceived lo exceed that invehred
in atternpting to predict relative price fMucluations.

Through the use of various types of forelgn currency transactions, the Series Trust may be exposed lo the
performance of a particular currency or currencies o contribule o the performance of the Series Trusl. There can be
no assurance that the Manager will employ a successful currency program and the Series Trust could Incur losses
attribulable to its currency activities when the value of the funclional currency weakens against the other currencies of
the Series Trust. In addition, the Series Trust will incur transaction costs in connection with the currency strategy
designated by the Manager.

The lable below summarizes the Series Trust's exposure lo currency risks ab July 31, 2023:

Finamcial A ssets

atFair Value 5 of Net
At Cash and Cash throwgh Profit or Farerard Other Assets and ARESL
Suly 31, 2023 Equivaisnts Loss Contracts Liabilities (Nat) Nt W alse
Turkieh Lira TRY § 15497 § - 5 [1.298.162) § 233306 § (1,050.359) [230%
\iréeted Staters Doflar S0 374 97 i INE - - (391 521 43 TIE A0 1002 5%
5 MI.IE! 5 42;‘1 155 % HEIIHI 5 Eﬁlaﬂﬂ E] 11% 100.0%

“Excluding cenvatre finarcial instuments

The lable below summarizes the Serkes Trust's exposure lo currency risks at July 31, 2022:
Firamei sl Assets

3t Fair Vahie Soof Mét
At Cash and Cash throwgh Profit or Forward Other Assets and Anset
July 31, 2022 Equi valents Loss” Contracts Liabilities (Nat) Mt ¥ alue
Turkish Lira TRY £ -4 g (968109 £ 379,198 % (6089113 (337%

The sccompanying noles are an mntegral part of these lnancial statements
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Wnited States Dollar WED 15 T16 19 8073 Badd _ = [d24 BE3) 18,537 672 1053 %
[ 152,716 5 1!&& ] E‘lﬂ! ] M5 BBy 3 lw.ﬁi 100.0%

“Exchudng centvatee firarcial indtnmens

The following table summarizes the sensitivity of the Sedes Trusl's assets and liabilties lo changes in foreign
exchange movements al July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022, The analysis is based on the assumplions that the relevant
foreign exchange rate increasedf{decreased) agains! the LS. Dollar by the percenlages disclosed in the table, with
all other variables held censtam. This represents managemenl’s besl estimate of a reasonably possible shift in the
foreign exchange rates, having regard o historical volalility of those rales.

Reasonably pessible

shift in currency rate Impact to Series Trust
Currency 2023 Het Asgets
TRY +- 5044% -+ % S3T.617

Reasonably possible

ghift in currency rate Impact to Serles Trust
Currency 2022 Mot Assets
TRY +- 111.72% NI 680275

Currency Forwards are anterad into for the account of the TRY Class Units with the aim of conveding the LS. Dallar
exposure into a Turkish Lira exposure by providing the unithelders of lhe TRY Class with a long Turkish Lira
exposure o fareign exchange rale fuduations in the currency rale behween Turkish Lira (in which the TRY Class
Units are denominated) and LS. Dollar (in which the Class C (USD) Class Units of the Selecled Fund are
denominated).

{ii} Interest Rate Risk

Interest rale risk is the risk that prices of fited income securilies generally increase when inferest rates decline and
decrease when interast rates increase. Prices of langer lerm securities generally change more in respanse to interest
rale changes than prices of shorter term securities. The Series Trust may lose money if shor-term or long-term
interest rates rise sharply or olherwise change in a manner not anficipaled by Seres Trus! management, When
interest rates fluctuate, the duration of the security may be used as an indicalion of the degree of change in the debt
price of the debl security. The bigger lhe securily’s duralion value, the larger the change in the price of lhe debl
security for a given movement in interest rates may be. Therefore, the Net Assel Value may fluctuate.

Interest bearing assels held by the Series Trust are comprised of cash and cash equivalents whose maturity is less
than three months and the invesiment in the Selected Fund.

The vield on the Selected Fund's (and indirectty, the Series Trust's) investments may be sensitive lo changes in
prevailing interest rales, which may result in a mismalch bebween the Selected Fund's assel yield and borrowing
rales and consequently reduce or eliminate income derived from its invesiments.

If interesi rates increase, prices of fixed income securities generally decline, reducing fhe value of the Selecled
Fund's (and indirectly, the Seres Truslt's) investments. A major change in interest rates or a significani decline in the
markel value of the Master Fund's (and indirectly, the Trust's) invesiments. or other market event. could cause the
value of the invesiments of the Master Fund's invesiors (and indirectly the unitholders® investments in the Series
Trust), or its yield, to decline.

If interest rates change, the values of longer-duration debt securties are usually subject to grealer change than the
values of shorer-duration debl securiies.

The Series Trust may invest in fixed income securitbes throwgh its indirect exposure to the Invesimenis of the
Selecled Fund. Any changes lo prevailing interest rates or changes in expectalions of future rates may result in an
increase or decrease in the value of the securifies held.

At Juby 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022, shoud Inferest rates have lowered or risen by 50 basis points with all other
variables remaining constant, the increase or decrease In folal comprehensive income of the Serles Trust (being
Increase in net asseils aitributable te the holders of unils from operalions for the peried) would amount to
approximately 51,638 and 5763, respectively, assuming thal the cash position will be held for one year.

(lii) Market Price Risk

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of these fnancial statemants
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The market price of invesiments owned by the Series Trusl and securlles held by the Seleclted Fund may go up or
down, sometimes rapldly or unpredictably. Securities may decline In value due lo factors affecting securities markels
generally or padicular indusiries represented n the securilies markeis. The value of a security may decline due o
general markel condifions which are not specifically relaled fo a paricular company, such as real or percebved
adverse economic condilions. supply and demand for particular securities or Instruments, changes in the general
outlook for corporate eamings, changes in interest or cumrency rates or adverse invesior sentiment. They may also
decline due to factors which affect a particular industry or industries, such as labor shorlages or increased production
costs and compelitive condifions within an Industry. During a general downturn in the securities markets, mulfiple
assel classes may decline in value simullanecusly. Equity securities generally have greater price volalility than ficed
income securities.

An increase in markel prices of the investment in the Selected Fund of 1% at July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022, would
have increased fhe lotal equity by 5427 912 and $198,098, respectively. A decrease of 1% would, all else being
equal, have an equal but opposile effect.

The following table summarizes the concentration in markel price risk of the Selected Fund's at July 31, 2023 as
a percentage of net assels of the Selected Fund.

Country Name Fair Value o, of Net Assets

Investments in securities
Australia 3 6,591,808 1.2%
Canada 3,669 409 0.7%
Cayman Islands 50,716,547 9.3%
Finland 4,010,102 0.7%
France 10,117 648 1.9%
Germany 5,778,889 1.1%
Ireland 25293 977 4. 7%
Israel 2,074 695 0.4%
Japan 27 645,325 5.1%
Luxembourg 2,207,629 0.4%
Kultinational 2,844 512 0.5%
Metherands 12,129.6T1 2.2%
Morsay 686,171 0.1%

The accompanying notes are an ntegral part of these fnancial statemants
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Singapore 1,000,050 0.2%
South Korea 8,123,733 1.5%
Spain 2,958,545 0.5%
Sweden 1,008,524 0.2%
Swilzedand 6.154.717 1.1%
United Arab Emirates 402,956 0.1%
United Kingdom 32477,353 5.1%
United Stales 246,321 911 45.4%
Total investment in securilies 3 452 724170 83 .4%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fnancial statements
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The following table summarizes the concentration in markel price risk of the Selected Fund's at July 31. 2022 as
a percentage of nel assels of the Selected Fund.

Country Name Fair Value % of Net Assets
Investments in securities
Ausiralia § B.414,752 1.5%
Belgium 803 672 0.2%
Berrmuda 1,999,345 0.5%
Canada 500.221 0.1%
Cayman Islands 45812479 10.9%
Denmark GB4E413 1.6%
Finland 5.282.584 1.3%
France 8,510 448 2.0%
Germany 6.410,753 1.5%
India 2,351 586 0.6%
Ireland 23,787 977 5.7%
Israel 403 848 0.1%
Japan 228672023 54%
Luxembourg 533 469 0.1%
Multinational 4,923.819 1.2%
Metherlands 9,976,239 24%
Saudl Arabla 1593.%80 0.0%
Singapore 1,198,217 0.3%
South Korea 6,755,277 1.6%
Spain 774,619 0.2%
Swilzedand 9,245,552 2.2%
Thailand 200,225 0.1%
United Kingdom 38,559,345 9.2%
United Stales 189,682,053 45.2%
Total investment in securilies $ 333,846,694 93.9%
(B) Credit Risk

Changes in an issuer's credit raling or the markel’s perception of an issuer’s creditworthiness may affect the value of
the Series Trust's invesiment in thal issuer. The degree of credit sk depends on both the financial condition of the
igsuer and the terms of the abligation.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund. the Series Trust is exposed to the credit risk associated with debt
instruments that may be held by the Selected Fund. All fransactions in listed securities held by the Selected Fund are
seflled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal, as delivery of
investments sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the
securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails 1o meet their obligation.

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust's credit position on an an-going basis.

The maximum exposure lo credil risk of all financial assels of the Series Trust as of July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022
is the carrying amounis as shown on the Slatemeni of Financial Position. Mo collateral or other credit enhancements
are held by the Seres Trusi, Mone of these assets are impaired or past due,

The clearing and deposilory operalions for the Selected Fund's securily transaclions are mainly concenirated with the

Custodian, At July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 substantially all cash and cash eguivalenis and invesimenis are
placed in custody with the Custadian, with a Fitch credil raling of A+,

The following table summarizes the credit quality of the Selected Fund's debl porifolio al July 31, 2023 as
a percentage of net assels of the Selected Fund.

The accompanying notes are an ntegral part of these fnancial statemants
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Rating® %o of Met Assets

Aaa 44.1%
Aal 1.1%
Aaz 1.3%
Aa3 25%
Al T.5%
A2 29%
Al 56%
Baal 5.3%
Baa2 4.0%
Baal 5.9%
Bal 1.3%
B1 0.1%
B2 0.0%""
Caa2 0.0%"™
MR 1.68%
£3.4%

"Secunty ralings, il any, are obtaned from Moody s! SEPST Fitch's Investor Sanvice
" A rero balance may reflect amounts rosnding to less than 0.05%

The follewing table summarizes the credit quality of the Selected Fund's debl portfolio al July 31, 2022 as
a percentage of net assels of the Selected Fund.

Rating® b of Net Assets

Aaa NT%
Aal 0.9%
Aa2 0.5%
Aa3 1.2%
Al 2.2%
A2 29%
A3 5.7%
Eaal 10.0%
BaaZ 10.1%
Baal 18.0%
Ba1 24%
Ba2 1.0%
Bal 0.3%
B1 0.3%
B2 0.0%"
B3 0.5%
MR 6.2%
93.9%

*Security ratings, if any, are obtaned from Moody™s! SEP'Y Frch's Investor Senvice
** A zero balance may reflect amounts rounding o less than 0.05%

(C) Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk exists when particular invesiments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Serles Trust's investmenis in
liquid securities may reduce the relums of the Series Trust because it may be unable o sell the iliquid securilies al
an advantageous fime or price. To the extent thal the Series Trusl's principal investment sirategies involve
derivatives or securlties wilh substantial market and/or credit risk. the Series Trust will tend fo have the greatest
exposure to liquidity risk.

Thi BCCOMpENYING Motes are an niegral part of these lnancial statements
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The lables below analyze the Series Trust's financial llabilitles inlo relevant maturity grouping based on the rem aining
peried al ihe Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual malurity date. The amounts In the lable are the
confractual undiscounted cash flows.

At July 31, 2023 Less than 1 month 1 -3 months Total

Fayables for
Purchase of imvestment in Selacted Fund  § 208,979 i - 3 208979
Invesiment management fees T8.010 - T8.010
Frofessional fess 52424 - 52424
Units repurchased 24 223 - 24,2217
Castnbution fees 16.956 - 16.956
Custody fess .70 - 7.7
Adminisirabor fees T.574 - T.574
Fee agent fees 4,224 - 4,224
Transfer agent feas 3745 - 3745
Printing feses 2699 - 2,699
Agant member company fees 351 - 351

Contractual cash out flows (excluding net

assets attributable to the holders of units) § 406 885 } - § 405 285

At July 31, 2022 Less than 1 month 1 -3morths Total

Fayables for
Purchase of invéstment in Selectéd Fund  § 380,223 g - 3 80,223
Professional fees 34,905 - 34,905
Investment management fees 22816 - 22816
Adminisirabor fees 7573 - 7573
Custnpution fees 7020 - 7020
Custody fees 4,746 - 4,746
Fee agent fess 4276 - 4 276
Printing fees 2498 - 2498
Transfer agent fees 1,670 - 1,670
Adenl membar Company faas 161 — 161

Contractual cagh out flows (excluding net

asgets attributable to the holders of units) § 485 882 H = § 485 882

The Manager monitors the Series Trusl’s liguidity position on an on-geing basis.
Liquidity risk is managed by imvesting no more than 15% of the Net Asset Value in illiquid assels.

The following lables summarize the Series Trust's derivative financial instruments al Juby 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022
with gross settlement for which the contractual maturilies are considered to be essential fo an understanding of the
timing of cash flows based on the Series Trust's investment sirategy. The amounts disclosed in the table represent
the undiscounted cash flows.

At July 31, 2023 Less than 1 month 1-3 months Greater than 3 months Tatal

Gross settled derivatives
Faorward contracts

-Cutflowy $ 44 662 446 % - § - ¥ 44 862 445
«Inflcay 43,363 284 . . 43 363 284
At July 31, 2022 Less than 1 month 1-3 months Greater than 3 months Toftal

Gross settled derivatives

Forward contracts

~Outflow ¥ 19802919 § S - ¥ 19,802.819
-Inflawy 18.514.810 - . 18,814,810

Due to iis imvestment in the Selecled Fund. the Series Trusl s exposed to the liguidity risk assoclated with unholders
repurchases In accordance with the terms in the Selected Fund's Prospectus. The Serles Trust is managed to Include
liquld Imvesimenis sufficlent lo meel normal lquidity needs allhough subsiantial repurchases of Units In the Series

The ac COMpamying notés are an ntegral part of these inancial statements
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Trust could require the Selected Fund to liquidate its Imvestments more rapidly than olherwise desirable In order to
raise cash for lhe repurchases. These factors could adversely affect the value of the uniis repurchased and the
valuation of the units that remain outsianding and the liquidity of ihe Series Trust's remaining assets if more liquid
assels have been sold o meel the repurchases.

There were no repurchase fees applied in respeci to the Selecled Fund for the years ended July 31, 2023 and July
31,2022

(D) Risk Management
The Series Trust's Investment Manager s team |s supported by certain risk management sysiems and professionals,
which provide regular reporting on all portfalio positions and quaniilative risk measures,

The capial of the Series Trust s represenled by Ihe nel assels allributable to Ihe holder of unils.
The amount of nel assets afiributable to the holder of unils can change significantly on a daily basis as the Series
Trus! is subjec! to daily subscriptions and repurchases al the discretion of the unithelder, The Series Trust's objeclive
when managing capital is lo safeguard the Series Trust's ability fo conlinue as a goeing concern in order o provide
relurns for the unitholder and benefils for ofher stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base te suppor the
development of the investment aclivities of the Sedes Trus!, In order to maintain or adjust the capital struclure, the
Serles Trust's policy is to perform the following:

= Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liquid assets and adjust the
amount of disiributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of unils.

= Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Seres Trust.
The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable 1o the holder of units,
5.2 Additional Series Trust's Risks

{A] Custody Risk
Meilher the Truslee nor the Manager conlrals the :uﬂndiah;hip of lhe Series Trusl's endire Hlﬂﬁll‘lg of indirect
investments. The Cuslodian or other banks or hl‘ﬂHBI’ﬂgﬁ firms selecled to acl as custodians may become insolvent,
ca IJSEI"IQ the Series Trust to lose all or a Fll:lrl:lfll‘l of lhe funds or securities held h"_." lhose custodians.

(B} Risk of Indemnification

The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator. the Custodian, and other parties. and each of their respeclive agents.
principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified oul of the assels of the Series Trust under
certain circumstances which may resull in a decrease in Met Assel Value per unit.

(C) Settlement Risk

Sefllement and clearance precedures in certain foreign markels differ significantly from those in the Uniled Slates,
the European Union and Japan. Foreign selliement and clearance procedures and frade regulations also may involve
certain risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) nol typically associated with the settlement of
United States investments. Al limes, seftlements in cerlain foreign couniries have nol kept pace with the number of
securities transaclions. These problems may make i difficult for the Selecled Fund and ullimately, the Manager o
camy out fransactions for the account of the Series Trust. If the Manager cannot sellle or is delayed in settling
a purchase of securities, it may miss aliractive invesiment opporiunities and certain of the Seres Tusl's assels may
be uninvested with no relum earned thereon for some period.

If the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager cannot sellle or is delayed in settling a sale of securities, the Series
Trusi may lose money if the value of the underlying security then declines or, if il has contracted to sell the security 1o
another parly. the Series Trust could be liable for any losses incurred.

{D] Derivatives

The accompanying notes arne an integral part of these fnancial statements
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The Manager may use dervative instruments lo hedge the Seres Trusl's investments or to seek 1o enhance the
Serles Trust's returns. Derivatives allow the risk exposure of the Serles Trusl lo Increase or decrease more guickly
and efficiently than olher types of instruments. Derivalives are volatile and imvolve significant risks. including:

+ Credit Risk — the risk that the counterparly (ihe party on the olher side of the lransaction) on a dervative
tfransaction will be unable lo honor its financial obligation te the Series Trust.

» Leverage Risk — the risk associated with certain types of invesimenis or trading sirategies that relatively small
markel movemenis may result in large changes in the value of an investment. Cerain investments or trading
sirategies that invelve leverage can result in losses that greatly exceed the amount originally invested.

+ Ligquidity Risk — the rsk that ceraln securities may be difficult er impossible to el a the lime that the seller would
like or at the price thal the selkr believes the security is currently waorth.

The Manager may use derivatives for hedging purposes for the Series Trust, including anticipatory hedges. Hedging
is a sirategy in which the Manager uses a derivalive to offsel the risks associaled wilh ofher Series Trust's holdings.
While hedging can reduce losses, it can also reduce or efiminale gains or cause losses If the market moves in
a manner different from that anticipated by the Manager or if the cost of the derivative cutweighs the benefiil of ihe
hedge. Hedging also nvolves the risk that changes in the value of the derivative will not match those of the heldings
being hedged as expected by the Manager, in which case any losses on the holdings being hedged may nof be
reduced and may be increased. There is no assurance that the Seres Trusl's hedging strategy will reduce risk or
that hedging transactiens are either avallable or cost effective. The Manager Is not required to use hedging for the
Series Trust and may choose nol to do so. Because the Manager may use derivalives to seek lo enhance the Seres
Trusi's relums, its Investments will expose the Serles Trust to the risks oullined above lo a grealer extent ihan i the
Manager used derivatives solely for hedging purposes. Use of derivalives to seek to enhance relumns s considerad
speculaiive.

As of Juty 31, 2023, had the Series Trust been subject to netting amangements and similar agreements,
the derivative assels and liabilities would have been presented as follows:

MNet Amounts of
Financial Assets
Gross Amounts of Gross Amounts Offset Presented in the
Recognized In the Statement of the Staternent of
Derivative Assets  Counterparty Financial Assets Financial Position Financial Position
Forward contracts cs $ 9635 % - % 9695
] J595 % — % 9 805
Related amounts not offset in the Statement of Financlal Position
Met Amounts of
Financial Assets
Presented in the
Statement of Cash Collateral
Derivative Assets Counterparty Financial Position Financial Instruments Received Met Amount
Fonvard contracts s 3 0635 % (0595 % - % -
3 9695 ¢ (9,593 § - % -

The accompanying noles are an ntegral part of these lnancial statements
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Met Amaunts of
Financial
Liabilities
Gross Amounts of Gross Amounts Offset Presented in the
Derivative Recagnized in the Statement of the Staterment of
Liabilities Counterparty Financial Liabilities Financial Pesition Finandal Position
Forward contracts cs 3 (1308857 % - % {1.308.857)
g (1.308857) £ - % {1308 857)
Related amounts not offset in the Statement of Financial Position
Net Amounts of
Financial Liabilities
Presented in the
Derivative Statement of Cash Collateral
Liabilities Counter Financial Position Financial Instruments Pledged Net Amount
Foreard contracts (1.308857) % HE95 % - % {1.239,162)
i [1.308857) % 969% ¢ 1 {1.299,162)
Counterparty Glossarny:

Ch = Cradil Suisss Intemational

Ag of July 31, 2022, had the Seres Trust been subject to netting arangements and similar agreements,
the derivative assels and liabilities would have been presented as follows:

Met Amounts of
Financial Assets
Gross Amounts of Gross Amounts Offset Presented in the
Recognized in the Statement of the Staterment of
Derivative Assets  Counterparty Financial Assets Financlal Position Fimancial Position
Forward contracts s [ 3339 % - 4 3339
3 3333 § — 4 3330
Related amounts not offset in the Staterment of Financial Positien
Het Amounts of
Financial Assets
Presented in the
Statement of Cash Collateral
Derivative Assets  Counte Financial Position Financial Instruments Received
Foreard confracts cs i 3339 4 {3339} £ -
k] 35330 % (3.338) ¢ =
Gross Amounts of Gross Amounts Offset Met Amounts of
Derivative Recognized in the Statement of the Financial
Liabilities Counterparty Financial Liabiliti es Financial Position Liabilities

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of these fnancial statements
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Presented in the

Statement of

Finandal Position
Forward contracts [== [ (991448) ¢ - & 1307, 448)
i (991.448) £ - % 157 448)

Related amounts not offset in the Statement of Financial Position

Met Amounts of
Financial Liabilities
Presented in the

Derlvative Statement of Cash Callateral

Liabilities Counterparty Financial Pogition Financial Instruments Pledged Net Amount

Foneard contracts s k3 (991448) % 3339 % - % (SEE, 109)
3§ (091.448) 3 3339 ¢ 3 {956,109)

Counterparty Glossary:
C5 = Cradhl Suisse intamational

{E) Counterparty and Broker Risk
The financial inslituwlions and cnunlerpartlas_ EI'IﬂlIJﬂh'Ig banks and hml:araga firms, such as the Cuslodian, with which
the Mana ger or fis ﬂB!B-g ale lrades or invesis for the accoun! of lhe Series Trusl, may encounler financial difficullies
and defaull on their FGSPBE.‘I!N‘G bbﬁgﬂﬂﬂﬂs owed in !‘GSPEE{ of the Series Trusi. ﬂl‘l:f such defaull could resull in
material losses lo lhe Series Trusl. In addition, the Ma nager may p[ﬁdgﬁ collaleral for the account of the Series Trust
lo lhe cnrurﬂerparlias in order to secure certain lransaclions. Mo collateral was Fﬂﬂdged b‘:.' the Managm— dIJI'iI"Ig the
years ended July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022

The Series Trust has not offsel any financial assels or financial liakilities in the Stalement of Financial Position.

{F} No Interest in the Selected Fund
The return on the unils depends, amongst other things. on the performance of the Selecled Fund. An invesiment in
unils does nol give a unitholder a direcl interes! in the Selecled Fund.

{G) Early Termination of the Series Trust
Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2163, the Final Repurchase
Day will be brought forward sheuld a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur,

5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation
The Series Trust applies IFRS 12 Fair valve measurement and ullizes the last traded market price for its fair
waluation inputs for both financial assets and liabilties.

An active markel is a markel in which transactions for the asset or liabiity lake place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The fair value of financial assels and liabilifies that are nof traded in an aclive market is delermined by wsing valuation
lechniques. The Series Trust uses a variely of methods and makes assumplions thal are based on market conditions
exisling al each period end date. Valualion techniques used for non-standardized financial instruments such as
oplions. currency swaps and olher over-the-counter derivatives, include the use of comparable recent am's length
lransaclions, reference o olher instruments thal are substarially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, optien
pricing models and other valuation techniques commonty used by markel paricipants making the maximum use of
markel inputs and relying as lille as possible on entity-specific inputs.

Far instruments far which there is no active markel, Ihe Series Trust may use imemally developed models, which are
usualty based on valuation methods and technigues generally recognized as slandard within the industry. Some of
the inpuls to these moedels may not be market cbservable and are therefore estimaled based on assumptions. The
oulpul of a model is atways an estimale or approximation of a value that cannol be determined with cerainty, and
valualion techniques employed may not fully reflect all faclors relevant to the positions the Series Trust holds.
Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for additional faclors including model risk, liguidity risk
and counterpary risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy thal reflecis the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements.

The accompanying notes arne an integral part of these fnancial statements
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Level 1 inputs are guoted prices (unadjusted) In aciive markels fer identical assels or Habliities thal the enlity

Level 2 inpuls are inputs olher than quoled prices included within Level 1 thal are observable for the assel

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which Ihe fair value measuremeni is categorized in its enlirety
is delemined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant bo the fair value measurement in s enfirety. For
this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in s enliraly. If a fair value
measuremen! uses cbservable inputs thal require significant adjusiment based on unobservable inpuls. that

measurement is a Level 2 measuremeni, Assessing lhe significance of a
measurement in ils enlirety requires judgment, considering factors specific 1o the

padicular input to the fair valus
assel or liability,

The determination of what constitules ‘observable’ requires significant judgment by lhe Administrator, under
advizement of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the Manager, considers observable data o be
that market dala that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verfiable, nol proprielary, and

provided by independent sources that are actively invalved in the relevan! markel

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inpuls wused as of July 21, 2023 in valuing the

Series Trust's financial assets:

(Unadjusted) Quaoted

Prices in Active Significant

Markets for |dentical Significant Other Unohseryable
Financial Asset at Falr Value Investmants Obzervable Inputs Inputs Falr Value at
Through Profit or Loss {Lewvel 1) {Level 2) {Level 3} July 31, 2023
Investment in the Selected Fund
FIMCO Short-Term Strategy
Class C (USD Class) i ] 42,791,195 § 3 42 791,195
|mvestment in forwand contracts O 595 9 595
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss § - & 42800830 5 § 42 800,690
Financial Liabilities at Fair Walue
Threugh Profit or Loss
Imvestment in forward conlracts ] i (1,308 857 § k3 [1.308,85T)
Financial liabilities at fair valus
through profit or loss - & (1308,857) § § (1,308,857}

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inpuls used as of July 31, 2022 in valuing the

Series Trusl's financial assets:

(Unadjusted) Quoted

Prices in Active Significant
Markets for ldentical Significant Other Unobservable
Financial Asset at Falr Value Investments Observable Inputs Inputs Fair Value at
Threugh Profit or Loss {Level 1) {Level ) {Level 3) July 31, 2022
Inwvestment in the Selected Fund
FIMCO Shont-Term Strategy
Class C (USD Class) i $ 19800844 § - 19,309, 344
Ivestmient in forwand conirscts 3338 3,338
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Financial azsets at fair value
through prefit or loss ] - & 19813183 § - % 19,813,183

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value

Through Profit or Loss

| Fvaatmant if forwand contrscts £ - % (3314481 § - & {991 442}
Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss 5 - § (891.448) § - 5 (851, 448)

During the years ended Juby 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022, there were no transfers befween Levels 1, 2 and 3.

Financial instrumenis that frade In markels that are not considered to be aclive but are valued based on quoled
marke! prices, dealer quotations or altermnative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within
Level 2. These include over-lhe-counter derivatives and debt securities. As Level 2 investments include positions that
are nol raded In active markets andfor are subject to fransfer resirictions, valualions may be adjusted to reflect
liquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on avallable markel information.

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

i) AL July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 cash and cash equivalents and all other assels and liabilities (Including
prepald fees, recelvables for units lssued and sale of investment In the Selected Fund and payables for
purchase of invesiment in the Selected Fund, professional fees, distribution fees, fee agent fees. unils
repurchased, investment managemeni fees. administrator fees, custody fees, transfer agent fees. agent
member company fees and printing fees) are deemed shor-lerm financial assels and liabilities whose
carying amounts approximate fair value because of Iheir shor-term nature, Refer to Nole 2 for a description
of the valualion technigues,

54 Investments in unconsolidated structured entities

As of Jubty 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 the Selected Fund's net assel value was 3543055262 and 3419610419,
respeclively, As of July 31, 2023 the Selecled Fund held tolal invesiments of $523.850 606 comprising of fixed
income securities (agency bonds, asset backed-securilies, corporate bonds and noles, morlgage-backed securities,
sovereign issues) of $452,724 170, shor-term instruments {commercial paper, U.S. treasury bills, corporate bonds
and fime deposis) of $86 873,229, futures contacls of 5797 477, forward contracts of %(15.153.041) and swaps

confracts of S(1,171,355). As of July 31, 2022 the Selected Fund held total investments of $317.591,618 comprizsing
of fixed income securities (assel backed-securilies, corporate bonds and notes. morgage-backed securilies,
sovereign issues) of $393,846 694, shom-term instruments (lime deposits and repurchase agreements) of
316,493,076, fulures conlacls of $(32.942.677), forward confracts of 52,562,647, swaps conlracts of 3{1267.172)
and wrilten oplions contracts of $(350). The valualion of investments in unconsolidated struciured enfities represents
the amount the Series Trust would expect lo receive if it were lo liquidated or redeem its invesimenis subject to the
underlying fund's liquidity or redemplion restrictions and cosls.

The Selected Fund is financed through equity capital provided by investers, include the Series Trust. During the years
ended July 31, 2022 and July 31, 2022 the Series Trust did nol provide any other financial support 1o the Selected
Fund and has no intenfion of providing financial or ofher support to this enlity. The righls altached to the Series
Trust's holding in the Selected Fund iz similar to those of other investors, Subscriptions into the Selected Fund are
governed by the rights stipulated in their offering documents. The Series Trusi has the ability lo liquidale or redeem
s invesiments periodically in accordance with the provisions of the respective fund agreements. Refer o MNote 1 for
information regarding the investmeni objectives of the Selecled Fund.

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward Contracts

The Invesiment Manager for the Selected Fund enfers Into forward coniracts for the Selected Fund by buying forward
coniracts. under normal circumstances in an amount equal, to the exient possible. to approximalely 100% of the LUSD
exposure of the Net Assel Value (excluding unrealized currency gain or losses).

The Curency Adminisiralor enters Info currency forward transactions with the Truslee (solely in its capacily as
lrustes of the Series Trust) for the account of the TRY Class Unils, with the aim of ensuring stability on a TRY basis.
Pursuant to the Currency Forwards, the Trustee (solely In s capacity as trustee of the Series Trust) sells U.S. Dollars
and buys Turkish Lira, in each case on a forward (typlcally one month) basis, in a notional amount egual, to the
extent possible. to approximatety 100% of the Mel Assel Value (excluding unrealized currency gain or losses). In

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fnancial statements
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addition, Currency Forwards are lo be executed by delivery settlement on their maiurity date but not by net settlement.
The Currency Forwards are administered by the Currency Administrator.

Forward Contracts Outstanding at July 31, 2023 ((3.1)% of MNet Assets)

MWt Unrealized
Sattlemant Appreciaton’
Datg Counterpanty Currency  Amsunt Bought Currency Amaunt Seld (Depreciation)
OEM 0023 (=] TRY 1,118,055, 364 usD {2,548 367) b {1281, 777)
OEM 0023 (=] TRY 1,010,739 usD {37 .562) {1594}
OEA 02023 Cs TRY 153441 usD {5,784} {116}
OEA 023 =] TRY 1,527,099 usD {57.930) 1 444}
OEA 2023 cs TRY 16,168,910 WsD (B 106ES) (12,573)
OEA 02023 Cs TRY 2.533,293 usD {180.643) {2, 140)
OEA 02023 cs TRY B18,B43 UsD {30853 (Bt}
OEA 023 =] TRY 382,742 usD {14,043 114
ORI cs TRY 457 281 usD {16,750y 165
O 2023 cs TRY EAT Bbd usD {25,198 Hi
R OAI23 cs TRY 04 B50 usD {2217 157
ORA 123 cs TRY 1410040 usD {52.158) i
ORA VAI23 cs TRY 4,952 482 usoD {182.3%) Tag
ORA OV AI23 cs TRY 1,675,921 ush {61.7Em 204
ORA 023 cs TRY 2562 304 usD {24 615) 168
O 2023 cs ush BT0EIS TRY {17927 497 7493
ORA 2023 cs ush A0 E30 TRY {S58ATE) 217
RN 2023 cs ush T.210 TRY {181 395 131
£ 51 200 Ié?t
Counterparty Glossary:

C5 = Cradit Suisse Intermational

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fnancial statements
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Forward Contracts Outstanding at July 31, 202 ((5.2)% of Net Azsets)

et Unrealized

Settlement Appreciaton

Date Countarparmy G urrancy Ameurt Bought Currency Amaunt Seld [Depraciation)
0ROz cs TRY 3,372,089 us0D {165.256) 5 1358
OEMOvaz2 Cs TRY 309,085 UED 17.253) (V2B
OEMvaz2 Cs TRY LEST 418 uED {53.015) {1,292}
OEM 2 Cs TRY 1,186,031 B0 (BT 415 {1,787}
OEMOrz2 Cs TRY J25551.014 UED {19,003 304 ) (38T 612}
OEMrz2 Cs TRY 1,496 B350 B0 E34T1) (634}
DEM 22 cs TRY 583471 a0 {195.475) TBD
DEMrz2 cs ush B4 542 TRY (1519775 536
OEM 22 ] ush 26,346 TRY (AT A5 201
OEM 22 ] ush 8,07 TRY (143079 108
OEMOr22 Cs ushD ™ B64 TRY (623 08E)y 162
OBM 022 ] ush amae TRY (B4.051) 174
i 1556 105)

Counterparty Glossany:
5 — Credit Suisse International

7. NET GAIN/[LOSS) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

July 31, 2023 July 31, 2022
Met loss on financial assets and liabities at fair value
through profit and loss consist of the following
Met realized gain on mvestments i the Selected Fund k3 263,143 § 535,73
Met realzed loss on investments in forward contracts (3,207 448) (13,070 268)
Total net reseed 1055 on linancial assels and labilities &t 18
valua through profit of loss ] [3, 034 355) £ (12,534 514)
Py @it inoned undeahZed Spoaec)alon | epreciation ) on
ifv eSIments in the Selected Fund $ 1,565,043 5 (850, 356)
Moyl in unreabzed (dopraciahion) on myeiment in
fonward Contracts (311,053 (2514 6
Total et change in unrealzed apprecistiont depreciabion) on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1,253 200 3 [3. 365 182

8. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
8.1 Fees and Expenses

(A} Administrator Fees

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.06% on the first USS500 million of lhe net assets, 0.05% on the next
USE500 million of the net assets and 0.04% on the nel assels over LSS billion, subject to a menthly minimum fee of
53,750, The fees earmed by the Adminisiralor during the years ended July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 and
oulstanding fees payable to the Administralor as of Juby 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(B} Custody Fees

The Custodian receives an annual fee of 0.025% of Net Assets Value. The fees eamed by the Custodian during the
yvears ended July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 and outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of July 31, 2023 and
July 31, 2022 have been disclesed In the Statement of Comprehenshive Income and the Stalement of Financia
FPosition, respectively.

(€} Distribution Fees
The Distributor receives an annual fee of 0.60% of the Nel Asset Value alfributable to the TRY Class Unils payable
monthly in armears. The Disiribution Fees are payable by lhe Adminisirator, on behalf of the Manager. owl of the

The ac COMmpamying notes are an ntegral part of these Inancial statements
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assels of the Seres Trusl. The fees samed by the Distributor durng the years ended July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022
and oulstanding fees payable to the Distributor as of July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Incoma and the Staterment of Financial Position, respectivaly.

(D] Investment Management Fees

The Invesiment Manager receives an annual fee of 0.35% of the Net Asset Value payable gquarlerly in arrears.
The fees eamed by the Investment Manager during the years ended July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 and outstanding
fees payable to the Invesimen! Manager as of July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 have been disclosed in the Stalem ent
of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(E) Transfer Agent Fees

The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of the Nel Asset Value and a $10 fee per transaction out of the
assels of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Transfer Agent during the years ended Juby 31, 2023 July 31,
2022 and outstanding fees payable o the Transfer Agent as of July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 have been disclosed
in the Statement of Comprehensive Incom e and the Statement of Financial Position. respectively.

{F) Professional Fees
Professional fees include legal and audit fees, The fees paid during the years ended July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022
and oulstanding fees payable as of July 21, 2023 and July 31, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of
CI:II'I'IFI'EHQI"ISWE Income and the Statemeént of Financial Position, I'B‘Spﬂtlhl'ﬂ]l',

#.2 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered 1o be related if one party has the ability lo control the olher parly or exercise significant
influence over the alher party in making financial or operalional decisions, The Trustee, Fee Ageni, Manager. Agent
Member Comparny and Derivative Counterparty are all related paries 1o the Series Trust.

There were no olher iransactions with relaled parties other than those in the normal course of business.

(A} Trustee Fees

The Trusiee is entiled lo receive out of the Operational Cosls Fee a fixed annual fee of 310,000 payable annually in
advance. The fees sarned by the Trustee during the years ended July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 and outstanding
fees payable to the Trustee as of July 31, 2023 and July 21, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Posilion. respectively, as a par of fee agent fees.

(E) Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent receives an annual fee of 0.12% of Met Assels Value (the "Cperational Cosls Fees™), accrued on and
cakulated as al each valuation day. The Operalional Cosls Fees are paid by the Administraler, on behalf of the
frustee oul of the assels of the Series Trust. The fees eamed by Ihe Fee Ageni during the years ended July 31, 2023
and July 31, 2022 and outstanding fees payable lo lhe Fee Agenl as of July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying the manager fees, the Trustee fees and costs and expenses, which are, in
lhe reasonable judgement of the Fee Ageml. delermined as associated costs and expenses of the manager fees and
trustee fees (the "Ordinary Costs"),

For the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is nol responsible for the payment of the investment manager fees, audit
fees, formalion expenses, disiribution fees, adminisiration fees, custody fees, any broker fees relating lo securily
transactions, any legal and audifing costs that are nol included in the audil fees and expenses, annual fees payable
in respect of the Seres Trust or the Trust to government bodies and agencies, amy Insurance costs, any costs
relating to the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 32 and other similar offering documents and the costs relating to
the preparation, printing, translation and delvery of such documents and any laxes relating lo the purchase or
disposal of securilies, legal or compensalion cosis, licensing, tax reporting. anti-money laundering compliance
and monfloring, expenses related lo the lermination ar the liguidation of the Series Trusl and any ather exiraordinary
costs and expenses that would not usually occur,

To the extent thal the Operational Cosis Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Cosis, the Fee Agent is liable for
any oulstanding ameounts. Any amounts remaining following payment of the Crdinary Costs shall be retained by the
Fee Agent as its remuneration for acling as fee agent in respect of the Series Trusl,

The Cperational Costs Fees accrue daily on an aclual / 365 day count fraction basiz and are payable quarierty in

arrears in the amount accrued, from and excluding, for ihe first accrual period only. the initial closing day. and for all
other accrual periods, the last day of each calendar quarter,

Thix accompanying notes are an integral part of these fnancial statements
79
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(€} Manager Fees

The Manager iz entitled 1o receive oul of the Operational Costs Fee, a managemen fee of 35,000 par annum payable
monthly In arrears. The fees earned by the Manager during the years ended July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 and
oulstanding fees payable to Ihe Manager as of July 31, 2023 and Juty 31, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Posifion, respectively, as a part of fee agent fees.

(D) Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company is enfilled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Met Assel Value afiributable to
the TRY Class Units payable quarterly in arrears. The Agent Member Compary Fees are paid by the Adminisirator,
on behalf of the Manager out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees eamed by the Agenl Member Company
during the years ended July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 and outstanding fees payable to the Agent Member
Comparvy as of July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 have been disclosed in Ihe Statement of Comprehensive Income and
the Statemeni of Financial Position, respectively.

{E} Derivative Counterparty

The Series Trust is permitied to enter inlo forward contracls with Credit Suisse International, a related pary lo the
Manager. During the years ended July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 there was nel realized gainfloss) of $3,297 438
and $(13,070,268), respeclively, and there was change in unrealized (depreciation) of $(311,053) and (2,514 226),
respeclively. on forward confracts with Credit Suisse International which is disclosed in the Stalemend of
Comprehensive Income and Mofe 7,

9. BEORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

The Series Trust may bormow up to 10% of is Met Asset Walue if required to facilitate short term cash flows. During
the years ended July 31, 2023 and July 31, 2022 the Series Trust did not incur amy borrowings.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent fransactions and evenis through November 30, 2023, the date on which
these financial statements were available to be issued, Effective August 1, 2023 through Movember 30, 2023, there
ware subscriptions of 36 676,424 and repurchases of 33,391,151, There are no other subsequent evenls to report as
relates fo the Series Trust.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
a0
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2023 11
48,541,925 7,139,060,910
1,674,391 246,252,684
46,867,534 6,892,808,225
52,763,386
0.89 131
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2023 11

1,657,844,823
9,157,535

13 75,372,573
74,585,646,538
1,352,222,099
23 159,924,392,692
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2022 12 31
22
38 59 131

23 103

2023 11 30
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2022 12 31

2022 2021
UsD UsD

14,396 2,117 1,541 227
14,396 2,117 1,541 227
4 14,396 2,117 1,541 227
5 205,000 30,149 210,000 30,885
58 9 4 1
219,454 32,275 211,545 31,112
6 (112,703) (16,575) (111,758) (16,436)
106,751 15,700 99,787 14,676
106,751 15,700 99,787 14,676

106,751 15,700 99,787 14,676
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2022 12 31

2022 2021

uSsD usD
9 1,984,033 291,792 1,759,688 258,797
10 205,864 30,276 210,863 31,012
2,189,897 322,068 1,970,551 289,809
10 336,526 49,493 223,931 32,934
336,526 49,493 223,931 32,934
11 735,000 108,096 735,000 108,096
1,118,371 164,479 1,011,620 148,779
1,853,371 272,575 1,746,620 256,875
2,189,897 322,068 1,970,551 289,809

2023 15
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2022 12 31
uSsD usD usD
2022
735,000 108,096 1,011,620 148,779 1,746,620 256,875
106,751 15,700 106,751 15,700
12 31 735,000 108,096 1,118,371 164,479 1,853,371 272,575
2021
735,000 108,096 911,833 134,103 1,646,833 242,200
99,787 14,676 99,787 14,676

12 31 735,000 108,096 1,011,620 148,779 1,746,620 256,875
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2022 12 31
2022 2021

usp usD
106,751 15,700 99,787 14,676
4 (14,396) (2,117) (1,541) 27)
92,355 13,583 98,246 14,449
4,999 735 10,107 1,486
4,999 735 10,107 1,486
112,595 16,559 5,998 882
112,595 16,559 5,998 882
4 14,396 2,117 1,541 227
224,345 32,994 115,892 17,044
224,345 32,994 115,892 17,044
9 1,759,688 258,797 1,643,796 241,753
1,984,033 291,792 1,759,688 258,797
9 1,984,033 291,792 1,759,688 258,797

1,984,033 291,792 1,759,688 258,797
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Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman
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2022 2021
14,396 1,541
14,396 1,541

2022 2021
205,000 210,000
205,000 210,000

2022 2021
(50) 1)
(6,478) (5,272)
(106,175) (106, 485)
(112,703) (111,758)

2039 10 10
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2022

2022 2021

1,984,033 1,759,688

1,984,033 1,759,688
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2022 2021

205,864 210,863

205,864 210,863

2022 2021

336,526 223,931

336,526 223,931
2022 2021

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2022

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
205,864 205,864 210,863 210,863
205,864 205,864 210,863 210,863
336,526 336,526 223,931 223,931
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
1,071,526 1,071,526 958,931 958,931
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
205,000 205,000 210,000 210,000
205,000 205,000 210,000 210,000
2022 2021
106,175 106,485
106,175 106,485
12 31
2023 12
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16
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17

2023 15
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Statement of Income Tor the year ended 31 December 2022

uso ‘:tr"::l 2022 2021
e gk R S e e e 14396 1,541

- af wiich inferas! incoma from instrumente at

amartiead cost 14,306 1,54
Total inkarest incomes 4 14,356 1.541
Serveofesincome B 205000 210,000
CHher reveroes e, - &
Total revenues 218,454 211,545
General, adminstraive and other cperabing expenses | & (12703 {111,768
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 106,751 94,787
Frofit befora tax 106,751 949,787
income fax expenes CTTTTE R e et 7 - e
Profit after ot 106,751 949,787

The accompanying rotes fomm an integral part of these finandal stalaments.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2022

= Raforce 2022 2021
Assals

Cash and due from banks g 1,584,023 1,759,668

Other assets 10 005,864 210,853

Total assels 2,189,897 1,870,551

Liabilities

Oither liabies 10 336,526 023,631

Total liabilities 336,526 223,931

Shareholders’ equity |
Share capital 1 735,000 735,000

Retained eamings LIB3TT 1011620

Total shareholders’ equity == 1,853,371 1,746,620

Total liabilities and shareholdars” equity 2,189,897 1,870,551

Bporoved and authorsed for issue by the board of directors on 15 June 2003

1
¥
)} Derector
)
)

popavoine

5

nw““,nm o non) Limited
Credit SUIBYE

The accomparying nates form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Staterment of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2022

Shane caplal Retamned Toral
uso eamings
R R e e e
BalanceatiJanuary 735000 1,011,620  1,746620
Frolit for the year =~ 105751 108751
Balance at 31 Decembar 735,000 1,118,371 1,853,371
2021
Balanceatilanwary 735000 911,833 1648833
Profit for theyeas " T gy gaet
Balance at 31 December 735,000 1,011,620 1,748,620

The ascomaaniing noles fam an integral part of thess finandal slatermants.
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2022

UsD ‘m 2022 2021
Cash llows from operaling aclvities

Prefit belone tax b the pemed 106,751 69,787
Adiustments to reconcile nel profit to net cash

generated from operating activities

Non-cash items ncluded in nel profit before tax

and ather adjusiments:

[Interest income S (4,386 (1547
Cash generated from operating activibes before

changes in oparating asseis and liabilities 92,365 98,248
Net decrease in operaling assels:

CHher asesls Y R A
et decrease in operating assets 4,999 10,107
Netincrease In operating Rebilitles:
(hher kacilties 110 508 5,000
Hotinchanss In opereting RabMtieee ... 112695 6998
Interest income mecaived 4 14,396 1,541
MNet cash generated from operating activity 224,345 115,882
Mel increase in cash and cash equivalents 224 348 115,862
Cash and cash aquivalants ai the beginning of year 9 1,759,688 | 543, 706
Cash ond cash equivalents al the end of year 1,964,033 1,759,688
Cash ard dua from banks 9 1,584,033 L, 755,658
Cash and cash equivalents al the end of yeor 1,984,033 1,759,688

The accomeanying netes toern an integral part of these linancial stodemants,
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Motes to the financial statements
1.  Principal activities

Credit Sumze Maragement (Cammy) Lirked (Ihe “Compam™) s ncarpoiaded in the Caenan [sands
with Emiked leblfty, The Comgany's pincipal activites are the crsation of trusis and the administration
and managermenl of assels n sk, The Company's registered office & ofo Maples Corporale
Eandices Lirded, R0, Box 3058 | Ugland House, Gand Capman KY1-1104, Cayrran [gands,

2.  Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These fnancil slalemends heve been prepared in accordance with &l appicable Infemalional
Financia! Repoding Standards (MIFRSs"), which colleclike ferm includas all applicable individual
Intemelional Finenciel Repering Standards, Infermetionsl Accounling Standards (14357 and
Interpretations msued by Inlemational Accounling Standards Scard ("ASET). A summary of the
siqnificant accourting palicas adopted by the Company is sef out below.

{b) Basis of preparaticn of the financial stalements
Thee measurerment basis ussd in the preparation of the financal slalemenls is the historcal cost basis,

The peeparation of financial staterents n confornify with IFRS: requires maragement 10 make
Judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of poicles and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estirmates and assockyied assumctions are based on
historica' experence and varous other factors that ame beleved o be reasonzble wnder the
clrcumstances, the resuls of which fom the basls of making the judgements about camying valies of
assets and Febilities {hal are nol readly apoarent from olher sources. Aclual resulls mey differ from
these eshmates.

The astimates and undarlying assumptions am redeswed on an ongoing basiz, Revisions to acoounting
eslimates ars recognized in the periad in which the estimale Is revised F the revision affects only that
percd, or in the perod of the revision and fulure periods | the mevislon afects both currant and future
paatiods.

Goeing Concam

On 18 March 2023, Credt Sumes Group AG and UBS Group AG anferad mio an agreemant and
glan of menger (the mergar”), which was complated on 12 Jure 2003, From 12 June 2023, the
Company = 2 contolicated subsidiany of LBS Group AG, and as such the fiture cparations and
financial perormanze of the Company may be imgacted as a result of the merger and the impact s
yet to be determined. This matter indicates thal a material unceriainty exdsts thad may cast significant
dewbt on the Company's adlity 1o continue as 2 going concem. The Directors have considersd the
fulbure tquidity and cash fiows of the Company in the coming twelwe months from 31 December 2022
{"lhe next twelve months™) and concluded that the Company Is expected o have sufficlent woring
capilal to mee! ils lnancial obligelions as end when they Tl due to conlinue aperating the Company
during the nexd twabe months. Accordingly, the Direclors consider thal i is appropaate to stil prepare
the 9002 francal slalemenls on & going concem basis,
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2. Significant Acecunting Pelicles (cominuad)
(gh Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash al bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly
licasd irvrestments thel are readly comeertible into known amownts of cash and which are subjecl ta an
insignificant risk of changes in walue, having been within thres months of metunty al scquisilion,

{d) Foreign currency

Tiwe Compary's Tenclional and presentalicn curency s Uniled Slates Collers (USD). Foreign
currency transacions during the year are translated into USD at the foreign exchange rates ruing ol
the tiensadlion dates. Monetery assals and fadlites denominated in forelgn currencies are Irenglaled
into USD &l the foreign exchange mies wing at the end of the reporting peried. Exchenge gaing and
losses are recogsed in the profit or loss,

Mon-monetary assats and labllites thal ars measured in terms of historical cost in a forelgn currency
are transiabed into USE ushyg the fomsign ecchange rates rling at the transaction dates. Nore
manetaty assets and ablffies denominated In forsign currancies that are slated ol fair value are
translated using the fore'gn exchange rates nding at the dates the falr value was determined. Forcign
currency differences adsing on retranslation are recogrised In profil or loss,

{e) Other assebs

Other assets are initiady recopnised 2l lar value gnd theseaflor sialed at ameortized cost kess
Expeciod Crocit Loss (ECLT) (refer to Mote i), emcapt where the recebabies are interost-froe
nans made to related parbes without any fxed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaderid, In such cases, the recsivabies are stated of cost kess Inmpainment for bed and doubiiul
dobis.

(f) Provisions and contingent liabililies

Proviskens are recogrised for labitiss of uncertain fiming or amount when the Company has a lagal
o consbroctive obligation ansing a5 a result of & past event, it is probabe that an cutfiow of econemic
benefits wil be reguired to setile the chligaton and a refiable estmate cash be mada. Whars the ime
valse of money s maledal, proviskars ans staled at the presend value of the axpenditure axpecied fo
setthe the obigaton.

Wynane it is not crobable that an cutflow of economic benalits wil be requiced, or the amourt cannol
ba astmaled refably the obinabion is disciasad as a conbngent fabilly, unlaze the srababilty ol
outfiow of aconomic benafits ks remote. Possibie chlisations, whose axstence will anly ke corfirmed
by tha cccurence o nan-occurrsnse of one of mome foture evenls are also disclessd as contrgent
fatities unless the probabiity of sutflow of economis berefss is remade.

(g) Impairment

Tra carmyng amount of the Company's asseis I reviewed at the end of each reporting pericd to
defermina whether thera is any ofjective evidence of impaiment. If any such objective evidence
edsts, the assels reccwerabla amount l& eslirmaled at the end of each reporiing pedos. An
impairment l0ss s recognised whensver the camying amount of an asset exceeds Ks recoverable
amount. Impaiment ksses ane recognised in the profd o kess.

Undar FRS &, tha impairmant requissments apply primarily 1o (nandal assets measured at amorised
cast. Tha impairment requirerents are based on a forward=oeiing sxpecled aedit loss model by
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continuad)
(g} Impairment (continued)

moorporating reascnable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions available &l the
reporting date. This requires considerabla judgement sver how changes In eccromic faclors alfect
ECLs, which is determined on a probabiify-waichtes bacis,

(h} Revenue recognition

Provided that & is probable that the sconomic berefits will figw to the Comparny and the revenus and
costs, if applcable, can ba resscoad relably, sendce fee incoma (s recognized in profit or lass when
the investment managemant service is provided,

(i} Expenses
All expenses are recogrisad in predil and loss on an accnual basis.
(i} Relatad partias

For the purposes of these financial statements, & pary i3 considarsd to be méated o the Company if:
{a} A person, or a clese mermber of Ihal person’s family, & related to the Comeany B that person;
i) has contral or joint contre! over the Compary:
(i} has sgniicant influence gwer the Company; or
i} iz 3 membar of tha key management personnel of fhe Company or the Company's
parsnt.

[B)  An entity is related to the Company f any of the ialowing condiions apples;

)  The eniily and the Company are memberz of the same group [which means that sach
paront, subsdiany and lellow subsidary i relaled Lo The othes).

i} One enfity @5 an associale or joint venture of ihe other endity (or an =ssocate or jon
veniure of a member of & group of which tha olher entity s a mamba),

i) Bolh enlilies ane joint ventures of the sme thicd party,

{7y One enbly is & joird venture of o thid pary and the other entity is an assocate of the
Ihired party:

(] The enliy s a post-amploymant benefit plan for the benefit of emplovees of either the
Company or an entity rafaled to the Caomgany,

0d)  Tre entily s contralled or jolnlly contreled by & person identified in (a).

0dl) A parson dentified in (2100 has significant influsnce over the ently or i a member of the
kery management personnel of the entity {or of & parent of the enlity).

Chse members of the family of 2 person ame lhose family members whe may be spactad o
influence, or ke influerced by, (hal person in thel daalings with the antity,

fk} Standards and Interpretations effective in the current peried

The Company has ncl adopled any new slandards or amendments having material impact on the
tinancil positon, result of opemtions or cash fiows in the cwrent year,
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3.  Changes in Accounting Policies

Thee IASE has issued a oumber of amendmenis lo (FRSs (et are fiel effeclive for the cumend
accourding period of the Cormpany. The adophion of thesa amendmants had no materal impact to the
Company's fnandal pesition, resuit of operations or cash flows,

The Comparty has nat agalied arry fe standard or inferpeatation that i& not et effective for the
curment acomniing period (Mote 15).

4. Total Interest Income

USD 2028 2021
Total interest income

Iniersstincome o cashand dvs fombarks 14305 1541
Total Interest income 14,396 1,641

All the sbose inberest incoma on natuments are sl amodised cosl.
6. Service Fee Income

The princical acthiiies of the Company are the creation of frums ang the adminlstraticn and
managerment of assels in trusis,

Revenue represents swestrment management fee incorme eamed Trom felow subsidigny a5 lolows:

UsD 2022 021
Jotsl sarvicafesinooma il

Senvoe fee income B TORO00 T 210,000
Toial service fee mcome 205,000 210,000

6. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

usD 2022 2021
LGaneral administrative and olher operating expenses ________
b ot S P S O SNSRI SNSRI (
Ausditor remuneration {8.473) (5,279

“Total general administrative and other operating expenses  (112.703) _ (111.758)

AL of the above expendilures ane payathe 1o fhe Comgany's immediale helding compary and ihe
immediate ho'ding cempany setties such cxpenditures en behalf of the Company.

7. Taxation
Thers ara no taces on income or geins in the Cayman Izlands and the Company has recelved an
underaking from the Govemer in Coundl of the Cayman lslands suemeting B from all lcal income,

prediis and capital taoes untdl 10 October 2038, Accordingly, no provdsien for income taxes is inciuded
in these financial statemsnts,

11
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8  Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sporgonad unconsokdated struclurad endrias

The Company considers fiself the spansar of a stractured entity when sgher s name appears in the
narme of the strectured entity o in products issuad by f o thers is & general axpeciation from The
marned that the Company is essociated with the structured entity or the Company was involsed in tho
design & se1 up of tha struclured entity and hias & foim of Imvohement with the siruciured endity.

The Beslow unconsolideled struciuned enfities 2re spansored by the Cernpany whane a fred annual
managemant fea of USD 5,000 (20217: USD 5,000 i received bul no inflanest s he'd by the
Comgpany as at 31 Decarmbar 2070

R et Ly SO I e i s e S s A R
Australian High Dividenc Equity Twin Alcha Fund (Fer Qualried Insttutional bwestors Only)

Japan Equily Frarium Fund (Foe Quadlied Insliclonal vestors Onlg

. il v o S e T A e - R e e .

NE/MYAM US RE'T Income Fund (For Ouslitied Instiluiional ivestors Crl)

___________________________ e . e i, e i, e i

Do Braian Real Sond £ (For Ot Insiuonal imestors Oni)_
Nissay Japan Equly Aclive Fund (For Qua'fied Instiltionsl nvesiens Crly)

---------------------------------

X Mol B S S
it e o L

..........................................................

T hon g - s e e e e
Dok, AT Compens Call Fund (For Guialited intic sl inseaio niy)

Forsign Dersminated Man AHL Sman Leverage Strategy Fund

12
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8  Unconsalidaled Structured Entities (continued)

58I Pictet Asia Hi-Tech Vanturs F und

ALID Short Temm Band Fund

'ﬂ'rm' i 'rF. Car 's':.%h}g.{ Eu'-s.'d """"""""""""""""""""""

HOLT Euro Eqy 1}' Fromiem Fund I:Far w!ml m-.ihr.lmn, Irrecshons ﬂdr}'
*The funds were ferrinated during P0ED,

The Compary has ~ot prosided Enancial er othar supzort to unconsofdated structurad entiies that it
was nol contraciually required 1o peovide,

The Comgany does el currenlly hewe e indention o predde Toancal or other support o
unconscidater sinucted enfilies that it & nol confractually recpaned bo piovida.

9. Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash aqunalants compra:

USD 2022 2021
Cash and due frorm banks

Coshandds frombanks = . _ .. %6403 17500663
Total cash and due from banks 1,984,033 1,759,688

10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities

usp 2022 2021
Other asssts

Irdeses! and leos recehmbie 5,864 210,853
Total other assats 205,864 210,863
s 2022 ]
Other liabilities

Inbsrest and fees payahle 236,509 PEEE-CT]
Tetal ather liabilitiss 336,526 223.931

18
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11. Share Capital
(@) Authorised and lssued share capital

2022 2021
Mo. of uso Ne. of uso
shares shares
Authorised:
Ondinary shares of USD | each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000000 1,000,000

lssuad and fully paid up: _

Orcheasy shares TIE000 VI5H00  TASO00 ¥3B.000
Tia hokisss of erdinary shares am entillad to meaive dhidends as deciared from fime to e and are
enfitied to one vote per shase at ceneral meetings of the Campany, Al ordinary shanes rank equaly
with regard to the Company's residual aseets,

{b) Capital management

Tha Company's primary ebjecties when managing capital ars to safequard the Compary's ability 1o
conlinus as a going concern &0 that it can continue to provide refums fo sharshoiders, by pricing
sandcas commansuaiely with the leval of risk and by securng access fo finance at 2 reasonabie
cast. As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company's sourges of additional capilel and
policies Tor distioution of socess capital may also be affecled by the group's cepétal management
oijectves. The Comparry defines “capital’ a5 ncluding al companents of equity.

The Company's capilal structure is mgulady revawed and managed with dus regard o the capisl
ranggenenl paclices of the group lo which the Company belongs, Adjustments am mada 1o fha
capital slruciure in light of changes in economic condiions alfecting the Company or the group, to
the exdent that thess do nol conlict wilh the disctors’ frhuciasy duties tovards e Comparst

The Company was not subject to extemally impogsed capiial requirerrents in the current perid,
12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure fo credit, iquidty, nteres! mals and foreign clamency risks arsas n tha normal course of the
Company's businass, Thess risks are managed by the Company's finandal management podicies and
practioes described belboe,

(@) Credt sk

The Comprny's cradil 4% is prirarily attibutable o amoends dee {rom group companies and cach at
bank, Credil nsh = defined as rsk that cne party te a financial nstrument will cause a financlal loss b
anpthar party by failing 1o dischage an obigation, Managament regulady menftors its risk enposum to
ersure thal ite credit risk s ept 1o 2 minimal feved The madimom scposuss 10 cradit sk is
represanied by the camying amount of each Sinancial assat in the statement of financial position afier
deducting any (mpairnent alowanse,

199/243



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

et S Mmagemon! (Toymany i sl
Mofns b Fnanca! stetamants kor M posr groted 31 Decanbey 5077

412. Financial Risk Management and Fair Yalues (continued)

b Ligulaity risk

The Company's policy is lo regulady monitor its liguidly requirermenls o salisfy 15 contmchual and
reasorably loeseealle obfigalions as they lel due.

At 31 Decamber 2020 ang 2001, all of the Company's linanclal kalilites, whizh inziudes all crediters
and acoruas, ate on demand or undated and are expecisd w be sotled batween three fo beehes
months,

fo) interast rate risk

The Company s ssposed to inlerest refe sk only 1o the extent that it sams bank niemest on cash
and deposits. At 31 December 2022 and S0, a change In Interest rates weould have no direct
materal effact on the carmying value of the recognised assets or labiltas of the Comeany.

(&} Forelan eurrency risk

The Cempany i exposed b foresgn cumency rigk prmarily through certain transactions which gese risa
i payaties fhat are danominated in Hang Keng dollars (HED .

Az the HRD is pegoed to the USD, tre Company considers thal the nsk of movemenis in exchange
rales between US0 and HHXD fa ke insigniticant.

{8) Fair valuas

Tha carying amounts of the Comzany's fnancial nstruments carvied af cost or amortised cost are not
matedally differant freem their fair waive as ot 31 December 2022 and 2021,

13.  Material Related Parly Transactions

In gddificon 40 lhe ranseclons and bafances disclosed skewhers in he financal slalements, the
Cemparny artarad inlo the foliowing malenial related pary ransactions.

(a) Related party balance sheel transactions

31 Decombaer 2022 31 Decamber 2021

Farent Fallow Tetal Parent Fatlow Takal
Group Group

ush Companias Compankes

Assats

OHher wssets —  ohS0d o0 A = ooEm | olopea

Total assets - 205,864 205,884 — 210,863 210,883

Liabilitims and

Equity =

Ottarfablites =~~~ 336506 = - dEspun s - L

Shane capii an, 000 - T, 00 5,000 - Taih, 000

Total liabilites and

sharsholders’

equity 1,071,526 — 1,071,536 958,331 —  85ESM

15
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13. Matersl Related Party Transactions (continued)

() Related party revenues and expenses

31 Decamber 2022 31 December 2021
Parant Fallow Tekal Parent Fellow Talal
Group Group
uso Companies Coir panties
Ravenuas
Serie fer e B0 S0 210000 _ 21000
Total revenues - 205,000 205,000 = 210,000 210,000

{c) Remuneratien of key management personnel

Remuneration of key managamant perscrmel (USD) 2022 wih
“Bhor-mm amployes tanalis 108,178 108,488
Total Remuneration of ey management personnal 106,175 106,485

14. Parent and Ultimate Helding Company

At 31 Decombar 2062, the immediale parent of tha Company is Cradi Suisse (Heng Hong) Limiled,
which is incorporated in Hong Mong and the ulbmale conlwolling patdy of the Company & Credit
Swisse Group AG, which & incorpomaled in Swilsetland. Credit Susse Group AG produces financial
slalernents wailebis {or putlic use,

From 12 June 20E3. the ulimate contraling pary of the Company is UBS Group AG, which s
incorparated 18 Switredand upen eompleton of the merger with Credit Suisse Group AG (‘e
merger) mendened in Nobe 2(8),

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, Mew Standards and Interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2022

Cerain rew accounting standards, amendments lo scoounting standards and interprelations hava
besn published that ars not mandatory for 31 December 2022 reporting peeds and have nol been
early adopled by Ihe Compary. These slandands, amandments o interpralations are not expected to
have & matedal impact o0 he enlily in the cumend or fulwre repoding periods and on foresasabis
fifure tramsackions.

16. Subseguent Events

As sel oul in Mole Xb), on 19 March 2028, Credit Suisse Group AG and UBS Group AG amared
Inftd an agresment and plan of menger, which was completed on 12 June 2022, From 12 Jure 2083,
the Company Is a consolidated subsidiary of UBS Sroup AG, and as such the fulure operaticns and
financial performence of the Company may be impacted as 3 msult of tre menger and the mpast i
vt {0 b delermined,

17. Approval of Financial Statements

The financial slalements were approved for issue by the board of direclons of the Comgany on 15
June 03,
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

2023 11 100 4,707

Intertrust N.V.

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.

2023 12 10 4,000
1,529 5,280

1940
206
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2023 12 1,251 6,700
Credit Suisse International
2023 11 113 6,600 6,715 9,762

1990 1985
2500199 1990
2000 27
2006 16
Aktiengesel lschaft
E14 4QJ +44 (0)20 7888 8888
E58DKGMJIYYYJLN8C3868

1990 16
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Credit Suisse AG

2023 11 1,341 1,674.44 19.72

Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee

KPMG LLP

P.O. Box 493

SIX Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY 1-1106

Cayman Idands

Telephone +1 345 949 4800

Fax +1 345 949 7164

Internet www.kpmg.ky

Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of PIMCO Short Term Strategy (the "Series Trust"), a series trust of Credit
Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) Il (the "Trust"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at July 31, 2023,
the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes,
comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Series Trust as at July 31, 2023, and its financia performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAS"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the "Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section
of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International |ndependence Standards)
("IESBA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
Cayman Idlands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series
Trust's internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a
going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

November 30, 2023
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Board of Directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Company™), which are set out on pages 4
to 16, comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;

the statement of income for the year then ended,;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSS").

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
(“IESBA Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)
To the Board of Directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw your attention to Note 2(b) to the financial statements, which describes the merger on 12 June 2023 (the
“merger”) between Credit Suisse Group AG (the ultimate parent of the Company before the merger) and UBS Group
AG (the ultimate parent of the Company after the merger), which may have an impact on the Company's future
operations and financia performance and the impact is yet to be determined. This matter indicates that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’' s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with |SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
meateria if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company'sinternal control.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)
To the Board of Directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Auditor’'s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 15 June 2023
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